AGREEMENT

between

COMMUNITY UNIT SCHOOL DISTRICT 201

and the

WESTMONT TEACHERS ASSOCIATION

2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023

2020-2023 W	IA Conective	Багдашш	g Agreement	

Table of Contents

ART	ICLE 1	RECOGNITION	7
	1.0	ASSOCIATION RECOGNITION	
	1.1	TEACHER DEFINITION	
	1.2	ADDITIONAL NEGOTIATIONS	
	1.3	BOARD AUTHORITY	
	1.4	BOARD RESPONSIBILITIES	
	1.5	NON-INTERRUPTION OF WORK	8
ARTI	ICLE 2	TEACHER AND ASSOCIATION RIGHTS	
	2.0	RIGHT OF REPRESENTATION	9
	2.1	PERSONNEL FILE	
	2.2	SCHOOL CODE RIGHTS	10
	2.4	ASSOCIATION COMMUNICATIONS	10
	2.5	NAMES OF NEW TEACHERS	
	2.6	ASSOCIATION BUSINESS	11
	2.7	TEACHER USE OF PREPARATION TIME	11
	2.8	CONTRACT DISTRIBUTION (WEBSITE)	11
	2.9	PERTINENT INFORMATION TO ASSOCIATION	11
	2.10	RESIDENCE	
	2.11	DUES DEDUCTION	.12
	2.12	NON-DISCRIMINATION	
	2.13	PARENT TELEPHONE CALLS	
	2.14	DISTRIBUTION TO RESIDENTS	
ARTI	CLE 3	TEACHER WORK DAY AND ASSIGNMENTS	13
	3.0	TEACHER WORK DAY	.13
	3.1	SCHOOL CALENDAR	.15
	3.2	INTERNAL SUBSTITUTION	.15
	3.3	SUMMER SCHOOL	
	3.4.	SUMMER COUNSELING HOURS	.16
	3.5	JOB DESCRIPTIONS	
	3.6	COMMUNICATIONS	
ARTI	CLE 4	TEACHER EVALUATION	17
	4.0	NOTIFICATION	.17
	4.1	OBSERVATIONS	.17
	4.2	SUMMATIVE EVALUATIONS	.17
	4.3	INFORMAL OBSERVATIONS	.18
	4 .4	REMEDIATION	
	4.5	PROBATIONARY EMPLOYMENT RECOMMENDATIONS	
ARTI	CLE 5	TEACHER PROTECTION	19
	5.0	ASSAULT PROCEDURES	19
	5.1	PARENT-STUDENT COMPLAINTS PROCEDURES	19
	5.2	HAZARDOUS CONDITIONS	20

ARTICL	E 6 VACANCIES AND TRANSFERS	21
6.0	VACANCIES	21
6.	. 	
6.3	2 VOLUNTARY TRANSFERS	21
6.3	3 INVOLUNTARY TRANSFERS	22
6.4		
6.:		
ARTICL	E 7 CURRICULUM DEVELOPMENT, INCLUSION, AND MENTORING	24
7.	The second secon	
7.		25
7.	2 TEACHER MENTORING PROGRAM	25
ARTICI	LE 8 PROFESSIONAL COMPENSATION AND RELATED PROVISIONS	27
8.		
8.		
8.		
8.		
8.	4 TRAVEL REIMBURSEMENT	29
8.	5 PLANNING PERIOD TEACHING	30
8.		
8.		
8.	8 ILLINOIS TEACHER RETIREMENT SYSTEM	30
8.		
ARTICI	LE 9 LEAVES	
9.	0 SICK LEAVE	32
9	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
9	.2 PERSONAL BUSINESS LEAVE	
9	.3 BEREAVEMENT LEAVE	
9	.4 RELIGIOUS OBSERVANCE LEAVE	
9	.5 JURY DUTY LEAVE	
9	.6 MILITARY LEAVE	
9	.7 LONG-TERM PARENTAL LEAVE	
9	.8 ASSOCIATION LEAVE	
	.9 UNPAID LEAVE OF ABSENCE	
ARTIC	LE 10 RETIREMENT	40
1	0.0 RETIREMENT	40
1	0.1 [Intentionally Omitted]	
1	0.2 DISTRICT RETIREMENT PLAN	
1	0.3 RETIREE INSURANCE	
1	0.4 UNUSED SICK LEAVE	
	0.5 POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS	
ARTIC	LE 11 GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	
1	1.0 OBJECTIVE	
1	1.1 PROCEDURE	43

11.2	TIME LIMIT FOR FILING	44
11.3	DEFINITION OF "DAYS"	
11.4	REPRESENTATION	
11.5	REPRISALS	
ARTICLE :	12 INSURANCE	
12.0	INSURANCE COVERAGE	46
12.1	INSURANCE ELIGIBILITY	
12.2	INSURANCE COMMITTEE	46
12.3	HEALTH INSURANCE	46
12.4	DISABILITY INSURANCE	47
12.5	LIFE INSURANCE	47
12.6	DENTAL INSURANCE	47
12.7	FLEXIBLE BENEFIT PLAN	
ARTICLE 1	3 EFFECT OF AGREEMENT	49
13.0	COMPLETE UNDERSTANDING	49
13.1	BOARD POLICIES	49
13.2	SAVINGS CLAUSE	
13.3	CHALLENGING THE ASSOCIATION	49
ARTICLE 1	4 NEGOTIATIONS AND TERMINATION	50
14.0	NEGOTIATIONS	50
14.1	INDIVIDUAL CONTRACTS	
14.2	AGREEMENT IN EFFECT	50
APPENDIX	A-1 2020-2021 Salary Schedule	
APPENDIX	A-2 2021-2022 Salary Schedule	53
APPENDIX	A-3 2022-2023 Salary Schedule	54
APPENDIX	B-1 2020-2021 Stipend Schedule	55
APPENDIX	B-2 2021-2022 Stipend Schedule	59
APPENDIX	B-3 2022-2023 Stipend Schedule	64
APPENDIX	C POST-RETIREMENT INCENTIVE AGREEMENT	69

This Agreement is made and entered into by and between the BOARD OF EDUCATION OF COMMUNITY UNIT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 201, DuPage County, Westmont, Illinois, hereinafter called "Board" and the WESTMONT TEACHERS ASSOCIATION, affiliated with the Illinois Education Association and the National Education Association, hereinafter called "Association." The parties hereto agree that:

ARTICLE 1 RECOGNITION

1.0 ASSOCIATION RECOGNITION

The Board hereby recognizes the Association as the sole bargaining representative of all certified teaching personnel, including team leaders, social workers, certified nurses, and other positions with equivalent responsibilities, excluding the Superintendent, principals, assistant and associate principals, and other administrative employees who perform administrative and/or supervisory duties at least 50% of the time.

1.1 TEACHER DEFINITION

The term "teacher" when used hereinafter in this Agreement shall refer to all employees represented by the Association in the negotiating unit as determined in Section 1.0.

1.2 ADDITIONAL NEGOTIATIONS

The Board agrees not to negotiate with any teachers' organization other than the Association or with any teacher individually concerning matters covered by the Agreement during the term of this Agreement.

1.3 BOARD AUTHORITY

The Board, on behalf of the electors of the District, retains and reserves the ultimate responsibilities for proper management of the district conferred upon and vested in it by the Statutes and the Constitution of the State of Illinois and the United States, including but not limited to the responsibilities for and the right:

- A. To maintain executive management and administrative control of the District and its properties and facilities and the professional activities of its employees as related to the conduct of District affairs;
- B. To hire all employees and, subject to the provisions of law, to determine their qualifications and to promote and transfer all such employees;
- C. To establish methods of evaluating students' progress and courses of instruction, including special programs, all as deemed necessary or advisable by the Board;
- D. To delegate authority through recognized administrative channels for the development and organization of the means and methods of instruction according to written Board policy as the same may from time to time be amended; and
- E. To determine class schedules, non-teaching assignments, the hours of instruction, and the duties, responsibilities, and assignments of teachers.

1.4 BOARD RESPONSIBILITIES

The exercise of the foregoing powers, rights, authorities, duties and responsibilities by the Board, the adoption of policies, rules, regulations and practices in furtherance thereof, shall be limited only by the specific and express terms of this Agreement and then only to the extent such specific and express terms hereof are in conformance with the Constitution and the Laws of the State of Illinois and the Constitution and Laws of the United States.

No action, statement, agreement, settlement, or representation made by any member of the bargaining unit shall impose any obligation or duty or be considered to be authorized by or binding upon the Board unless and until the Board has agreed thereto in writing.

Nothing contained herein shall be construed to deny or restrict the Board of its rights, responsibilities, and authority under any national, state, county, district, or local laws or regulations.

In any arbitration hereunder, the arbitrator shall have no authority to decide any question under any law or constitutional provision and the arbitrator's authority shall be solely limited to interpreting this Agreement.

1.5 NON-INTERRUPTION OF WORK

The Association agrees that neither the Association nor any of the employees covered by this Agreement will instigate, promote, sponsor, engage in or condone any strike, slowdown, concerted stoppage of work, or any other intentional interruption of the operations of the Board regardless of the reason for so doing during the term of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 2 TEACHER AND ASSOCIATION RIGHTS

2.0 RIGHT OF REPRESENTATION

When any teacher is required to appear before the Board, a Board committee, or Board member concerning any matter which could adversely affect the continuation of that teacher in his/her employment or his/her salary, the teacher shall be given five (5) days prior written notice of the reasons for such meeting or interview and shall be entitled to have a representative of the Association present to advise him/her and represent him/her during such meeting or interview.

In the event a meeting is held by the administration where discipline is to be then administered to a teacher, the teacher shall be given reasonable prior notice of the nature of the charge. The teacher shall have the right at such meeting to be represented by the Association. "Reasonable prior notice" shall generally mean at least 2 days, except for good cause shown where an emergency matter requires less notice.

The Board recognizes that before the Board or its administration takes disciplinary action (i.e., written reprimand, notice of remediation, or suspension without pay) against a teacher, the teacher should be advised of the reasons for the disciplinary action. The administration shall investigate the incident, produce evidence and give the teacher the opportunity to respond. Where possible, progressive discipline shall be followed. Any resultant grievance procedure will be terminated at the Board level.

2.1 PERSONNEL FILE

- A. Each teacher's official personnel file shall be maintained in the Central Administrative Office. No material may be placed in the file without first giving a copy to the teacher and informing the teacher that a copy would be placed in the file. The teacher shall initial and date the file copy to verify that he/she has received a copy of the said material. Initialing does not indicate agreement. Administrative comments which for evaluation purposes require improvement in the teacher's performance or which the Administration deems unacceptable shall be placed in the teacher's file within fifteen (15) days of the date the Administration becomes aware of or should have been aware once or observation thereof. Teacher commendations may be placed in the file without signature.
- B. Each teacher shall have the right, upon request, to review the non-confidential contents of his/her file and to attach a written response to any item in the file. The teacher's written response must be submitted within days after the date on the initialed and dated copy placed in the personnel record. A representative of the teacher's choice shall be allowed to review the file in the presence of the teacher. A teacher may duplicate anything in his/her file he/she may have the right to review (in the presence of an administrative representative), provided nothing is removed from the office where the file is maintained. The District may charge the teacher

for the reasonable cost of any said duplication. After five (5) years, adverse materials shall be reviewed at the request of the teacher and may be removed with administrative approval.

- C. Evidence not previously recorded in the teacher's personnel file prior to the notification of the demotion, discipline or other involuntary change in employment status shall not be used by the Board as a basis for its action, except for serious infractions which could be the subject of criminal prosecutions or civil complaint and prevent such prior recordation.
- **D.** Each teacher may insert in his/her file items concerning commendations, awards, honors, etc., not originated by the teacher concerning matters relevant to and subsequent to his/her employment.

2.2 SCHOOL CODE RIGHTS

Nothing contained herein shall be construed to deny any teacher his/her rights under the *School Code* of the State of Illinois or under other applicable laws and regulations.

2.3 RIGHT TO ORGANIZE AND PARTICIPATE

Teachers shall have the right to organize, join, and assist the Association and to participate in professional negotiations with the Board through representatives of their own choosing. The Board shall not discriminate against any teacher with respect to hours, wages, terms or conditions of employment by reason of his/her membership in the Association or his/her participation in negotiations with the Board nor shall the Board discriminate against any teacher for his/her institution of any grievance, complaint, or proceeding under this Agreement.

2.4 ASSOCIATION COMMUNICATIONS

The Association shall have the right to use teacher mailboxes and District email accounts, subject to the District's Acceptable Use Policy, for communications. The Board shall provide the Association with bulletin board space in each school for posting communications concerning Association matters. The Association shall have the right to use the District mail service. The Board shall provide the President of the Association or his/her representative with thirty (30) minutes of speaking time at the first institute. The President may, upon reasonable advance written notice, have additional time before or after the regular institute program for such purpose.

2.5 NAMES OF NEW TEACHERS

The Association shall be supplied with the addresses of newly hired teachers. Within two weeks of a new hire being Board-approved, the Association shall be notified of the individual's name and their personal email address and phone number, unless said newly hired teachers object.

2.6 ASSOCIATION BUSINESS

Upon reasonable advance notice, the Association shall have access to rooms in the schools for meetings, subject to the approval of the Superintendent or his designee, provided the Board shall not incur any additional custodial expenses as a result of any association use of said facilities. All requests shall comply with the Board policy concerning the use of District facilities. The Board shall provide and maintain for the exclusive use of the Association lockable storage space.

2.7 TEACHER USE OF PREPARATION TIME

The building principal may permit teachers, upon request, to leave the building during a preparation period for duties attendant to their professional responsibilities. The building principal shall not withhold permission arbitrarily.

2.8 CONTRACT DISTRIBUTION (WEBSITE)

Within thirty (30) days of ratification of the Agreement, the negotiated agreement will be posted on the District website.

2.9 PERTINENT INFORMATION TO ASSOCIATION

The Board shall make available to the Association upon request any existing public records, which are relevant to collective bargaining negotiations (i.e., teachers' base salaries) or necessary for the proper enforcement of the terms of this Agreement. Standing requests will not be honored. The Board will supply the Association President with a copy of the approved and tentative budget, audit, tentative Board agendas and supporting documents made available to the public, minutes (without personnel attachments), monthly financial statements, as well as a school per-pupil cost analysis. Copies of other documents available to the Association pursuant to this Section 2.9 shall be supplied to the Association at the Association's expense, which shall be equal to the Board's cost of reproduction. A copy of a notice of a special Board meeting shall be emailed to the Association President. Posted website documents shall satisfy the obligation of the Board under this provision to make the information available to the Association.

The Association may provide input to the Board on any fiscal, budgetary, or tax programs, considered or proposed annexation, consolidation, or revision of educational policy, prior to adoption.

2.10 RESIDENCE

Since school buildings are available for teachers a limited time during the day and since teachers may live a good distance outside the District, the Board recognizes that in order for a teacher to accomplish his/her job effectively, it may be a benefit to the District for the teacher to have space in part of his/her residence for the purposes of preparation, grading papers, storage of materials, and other functions related to teaching.

2.11 DUES DEDUCTION

The Board shall deduct from each teacher's pay the current dues of the Association, provided that the Board has an employee-executed authorization for annual membership or continuing dues deduction, the amount of which shall annually be certified by the Association. The authorization form shall be furnished by the Association. The authorization shall remain in effect from year to year, except that the employee may revoke it. Upon receipt of any revocation, the Board shall notify the Association in writing of same within ten (10) days. If a teacher resigns prior to September 7 in any year, the Board shall deduct the unpaid portion of the annual dues from the employee's final paycheck, if any. All dues deducted by the Board shall be remitted to the Association no later than fifteen (15) days after such deductions are made. The Association shall indemnify the Board and hold it harmless against any and all claims, demands, suits, or other forms of liability that shall arise out or by reason of any action taken by the Board for the purpose of complying with this Section.

2.12 NON-DISCRIMINATION

The Board shall not discriminate for reasons of race, color, national origin, creed, sex, age, marital status, or handicap against a teacher or applicant, as those terms are defined by federal or state law, provided that any grievance alleging violation of this Section shall not be subject to arbitration under the grievance procedure set forth in Article 10 hereunder and Step 3 shall be the terminal step for any such grievance.

2.13 PARENT TELEPHONE CALLS

Principals shall provide a private place for teachers to make confidential telephone calls to parents concerning their student's performance.

2.14 DISTRIBUTION TO RESIDENTS

The Association may make available (but not hand out) non-controversial materials to residents of the community at school-sponsored activities; provided that the Association submits the material in advance to the principal for review.

ARTICLE 3 TEACHER WORK DAY AND ASSIGNMENTS

3.0 TEACHER WORK DAY

A. Purpose

The teachers' workday shall be long enough to fully discharge their responsibilities to the students, the school, and to the District.

B. Length of Day

Teachers shall generally begin at least twenty (20) minutes prior to the start of the students' attendance day and shall generally end at least fifteen (15) minutes after the students' attendance day so long as the workday fulfills the 7 1/2 consecutive hour provision. On days preceding holidays and vacation, Fridays, or when teachers are required to attend night activities scheduled by the Board, the teacher work day generally ends fifteen (15) minutes after the students attendance day, and the 7 1/2 hour provision does not apply.

C. Duty Free Lunch

The teacher workday shall include a duty free lunch period, which shall not include pupil-passing time where teachers have scheduled duties.

D. Meetings

- 1. Grade level/ department/faculty meetings During the school term administration may schedule up to two (2) monthly meetings to be held outside of the regular school day. Teachers shall attend these meetings, which shall not exceed sixty (60) minutes in length.
- 2. Staffings -- Teachers shall attend student staffings. Such staffings may extend beyond the teacher workday.
- 3. Night Activities Teachers shall be required to attend up to three (3) night activities. The administration will publish events on building calendars.
- 4. Programs and Workshops The teacher work day for in-service programs and workshops may be extended to 3:30 p.m. for full day programs and up to 4:00 p.m. for programs held on early dismissal days.

E. Parent-Teacher Conferences

Parent teacher conference times may be scheduled by the administration each semester. One such conference time shall be in the evening following the early

dismissal for students and teachers. Evening conferences shall not exceed four (4) hours in length. The second conference time shall be in the morning of the next day. Morning conferences shall not exceed three (3) hours.

F. Plan Time

Elementary teachers -- Each full-time teacher shall have at least 245 minutes of time during the student attendance day per week for the purpose of planning.

G. Itinerant Teachers

- 1. Teachers shall have a school of primary assignment and shall be given the approximate amount of duty free preparation time allowed for the other teachers at the applicable level. The building where the majority of the teacher's instruction is delivered shall generally determine the building of primary assignment. Necessary travel time will not be included in the duty free preparation time. Teachers and building administrators shall collaborate on the scheduling of appropriate travel times and the assignment of instructional periods.
- 2. Teachers shall collaborate with building administrators to establish a schedule for commitments outside of the school day such as meetings and parents conferences. The commitments outside of the school day for itinerant teachers shall be comparable and will not exceed those in their building of primary assignment.

H. Part-Time Teachers

Part-time teachers shall normally work beyond their regular workday on curriculum nights and open houses. Attendance will be planned and coordinated with the building principal taking into account the personal needs of the teacher and the requirements of the position. Part-time teachers who teach for more than three periods/classes for junior high and senior high or 60% of the elementary school day and work as a TA the remainder of the work day will be provided with a paid preparation period at the teacher rate.

Part-time teachers will advance one step vertically on the salary schedule for each year of service.

I. Other Assignments

1. Kindergarten – Kindergarten teachers with two sessions shall be provided with at least one (1) day of release time each semester for parent conferences.

- 2. IEP Teachers who are required to write IEP's shall be provided with one (1) day of release time per school year for this purpose.
- 3. Tests- Teachers who are required to administer required individual assessments shall have one (1) day of release time for each administration to the entire class.

3.1 SCHOOL CALENDAR

A. Development

The calendar for any given school year shall be developed by a joint District committee that shall include two (2) Association representatives appointed by the Association President and two (2) administrative representatives appointed by the Superintendent, and may include one (1) representative each from WESPA and WCMA and one (1) parent representative. Members of the District calendar committee will seek input into the development of the calendar from their respective constituent groups. The committee will consider the input gained and by consensus develop at least two (2) calendar options. These options will be forwarded to the Board for consideration.

B. Requirements

The Board shall establish a school calendar, which shall contain no more than 180 pupil attendance days and institute days, and five (5) emergency days. This calendar shall be established no later than November, except where the Educational Service Region Office has not established a calendar or when additional time is needed to develop a calendar consistent with countywide prevailing practice. If the five (5) emergency days or any portion thereof are not used for emergencies, the Board shall declare all remaining days as school holidays. Teachers employed for less than a full year will be compensated on a percentage of 180 days. The Association may submit a suggested school calendar and, upon request, the Superintendent will discuss said calendar with the Association.

3.2 INTERNAL SUBSTITUTION

If a substitute teacher is not available, a teacher shall have the right to refuse to accept assignment to a class or a portion of any class other than his/her own. If a teacher voluntarily accepts such an assignment, the teacher shall be paid an internal sub rate (as shown in the Extra Duty Schedule attachment) per period or, where applicable, per hour, whichever is greater. Nothing herein shall prevent teachers from exchanging substitute responsibilities without pay, with the principal's approval.

3.3 SUMMER SCHOOL

Teachers employed by the District shall be given priority to fill summer school positions. In filling academic summer school positions, consideration shall be given to a teacher's

certifications, qualifications, merit and ability (including performance evaluations if available), and relevant experience (including past summer school teaching), provided that seniority with the District will not be considered as a factor unless all other factors are determined by the District to be equal, the teacher with the greatest amount of seniority in the summer school position shall be selected. The Board's selection decision is not subject to review under the grievance procedure, provided the District adheres to the procedural requirements for filling new or vacant teaching positions established in Article 6.0 of this Agreement. Assignments shall be offered to qualified teachers who volunteer. If more than one school is being used, teachers at the school's location shall be given preference. Summer school assignments shall not be mandatory. The teacher shall be paid at an hourly rate equal to the BA Step 1 salary multiplied by 0.0007788.

3.4. SUMMER COUNSELING HOURS

For work performed on the five work days preceding the start of the school year and the five work days following the end of the school year, counselors will be paid their per diem rate (1/180 of the employee's salary). For work performed outside of those 10 days over the summer break, counselors must receive pre-approval from the Superintendent or designee and will be paid at the summer curriculum rate.

3.5 **JOB DESCRIPTIONS**

The Association shall have the right to make recommendations in any current or proposed job descriptions. The Association shall be consulted prior to changing any job descriptions. Job descriptions shall be minimally provided for and distributed to team leaders, coordinators, Association president(s), and any other like positions created in the future and said job descriptions shall be made available to all applicants for vacancies in said positions.

3.6 COMMUNICATIONS

The Superintendent (and a District designee) shall meet with the Association's President and a WTA designee monthly to discuss matters of concern. The Superintendent will invite a member of the Board to attend at least every other meeting. The Association President and the Superintendent will collaborate on the agenda in advance of the meeting. In the event both parties agree not to have a meeting, no meeting shall be required. Cooperatively constructed minutes of these meetings will be shared with the Board.

ARTICLE 4 TEACHER EVALUATION

4.0 NOTIFICATION

At the start of the school term (i.e., by the first student attendance day), each qualified evaluator shall share with each teacher under his/her supervision the District's evaluation procedures, standards, and instruments. The teacher will also be advised as to who will observe and evaluate said teacher's performance. A qualified evaluator shall be responsible for observations and evaluations of teachers. A qualified special education coordinator may evaluate special education staff traveling between buildings. Teachers assigned to more than one building will be evaluated by one or more evaluators, at the teacher's option. If the teacher chooses one evaluator, the evaluator will seek input from administrators responsible for the supervision of buildings other than the evaluator's own in which the teacher is assigned. No evaluation shall take place until such orientation has been completed.

4.1 OBSERVATIONS

Teachers shall be observed both formally and informally as required under ISBE regulations. Formal observations of teachers shall be conducted with the full knowledge of the teacher and in accordance with the observation cycle established under the District's Teacher Evaluation Plan. Each formal evaluation conference shall be preceded by at least one formal observation for a minimum of 45 minutes, or for a complete lesson, or for an entire class period, preferably to include the beginning or end of a lesson or period. Each formal observation shall be preceded by a conference between the evaluator and the teacher as required under ISBE regulations. For Junior and Senior High School teachers being observed more than once, the evaluator should conduct a formal observation in more than one section. For teachers being observed once, the evaluator should conduct informal observations in other areas than the required formal observation. The teacher may request additional observations prior to the final evaluation conference, subject to the approval of the teacher's evaluator. Following a formal observation, the evaluator shall meet with the teacher to review the evidence of professional practice collected. Each formal observation will be followed by a post-conference. The post-conference will be held no later than ten (10) school days after the observation. Any written materials from the observation process will be completed and returned to the teacher within five (5) school days of the postconference.

4.2 SUMMATIVE EVALUATIONS

- A. 1. Summative evaluations shall be provided annually for all probationary teachers and for tenured teachers with less than five (5) years' experience as prescribed in the District's Teacher Evaluation Plan.
 - 2. Tenured teachers with five (5) or more years of service who have received proficient or above category ratings shall be evaluated with a summative

rating per statute and according to the decisions made by the District's PERA Joint Committee.

- B. The initial conference following a formal observation will be completed by December 15, except for reasons beyond the District's control.
- C. The second conference following a formal observation will be completed by March 1 for all probationary status teachers and by May 15 for all other teachers, except for reasons beyond the District's control.
- D. The District 201 Professional Evaluation and Improvement Scale is the standard used for evaluations. Said instrument shall not be changed without prior notice to the Association and granting the Association an opportunity to make recommendations, if any, to the Board prior to the Board's making its decision, provided that any instrument used at the beginning of the school year shall not be changed during that school year.
- **F.** The summative evaluation instrument will be signed by the evaluator and the teacher at the evaluation conference and filed in the teacher's personnel file.
- G. If the teacher feels the evaluation is incomplete or inaccurate, the teacher may put any objections into writing within ten (10) school days of receipt of the evaluation and have them attached to the Evaluation instrument. A copy of the written objections will be reviewed and signed by the evaluator and the teacher to record receipt and placed in the teacher's personnel file.

4.3 INFORMAL OBSERVATIONS

Following an informal observation, the evaluator shall provide either oral or written feedback to the teacher; if the feedback in a written format, the teacher shall have an opportunity to request an in-person discussion with the evaluator. If an administrator sees an area of weakness in a teacher's performance, which for evaluation purposes would be rated needs improvement on an item, the administrator shall notify said staff member in writing within 15 days and, if necessary, schedule a formal observation, and proceed through the provisions outlined in sections 4.2 and 4.3.

4.4 REMEDIATION

Teacher remediation shall be as outlined in the District 201 Evaluation and Improvement System.

4.5 PROBATIONARY EMPLOYMENT RECOMMENDATIONS

Sixty (60) days or more before the close of each school year, the principal will file a summative evaluation to the Superintendent, making an employment recommendation each probationary teacher.

ARTICLE 5 TEACHER PROTECTION

5.0 ASSAULT PROCEDURES

Any case of assault on a teacher while on school property or while performing his/her duties shall be promptly reported to the Board or its designee. If the assault does not involve two (2) or more employees then the Board shall provide legal counsel which is reasonably acceptable to the teacher to advise the teacher of his/her rights and obligations with respect to such assault and shall render all reasonable assistance to the teacher in the handling of the incident by law enforcement and judicial authorities. The Board's responsibility under this Section shall be limited to the terms and conditions of any insurance policies it may have hereunder.

5.1 PARENT-STUDENT COMPLAINTS PROCEDURES

The principal shall attempt to resolve the complaints by any person. If teachers or students are a part of the investigation of any complaint, the teacher against whom the complaint has been lodged shall be notified as soon as possible but no later than 48 hours, except that in emergency matters which could result in criminal prosecution, notification may take up to 72 hours. Before any such complaint is placed in the teacher's personnel file, the complaint shall be investigated by an administrator who shall attach a statement to the complaint noting the results of his investigation. If the complaint is resolved, the principal shall inform the teacher of the complaint and its resolution. If the complaint cannot be resolved and, in the judgment of the principal, it is serious, the complaint shall be channeled through the teacher and no action against a teacher shall be initiated by the administration until a scheduled parent-teacher conference has taken place, except in matters that could result in criminal prosecution, civil complaint, a DCFS investigation, or a complaint before any state or federal agency (e.g., claims of harassment or discrimination), which will be handled separately from the procedures outlined in this Section. The teacher may request the presence of a member of the administrative staff at such conference. If the parent or the teacher is not satisfied with the results of this conference, or if the parent refuses to have a conference, the following sequence of conferences shall be employed as needed to seek resolution of the problem:

- (1) Parent-teacher-building principal
- (2) Parent-teacher-superintendent or his/her designee
- (3) Parent-teacher-Board

The teacher involved, at his/her request, shall have (a) an Association representative who is a teacher present as an observer and, (b) an Association representative at the conference with the Superintendent and the Board. The teacher may not refuse to be present at the initial conference with the parent and/or student, except with the approval of the principal. Upon the teacher's request, the specific nature of the complaint and the names of the complainant shall be made known to the teacher. In no case shall any material concerning

such complaint be placed in the teacher's personnel file before said information is provided to the teacher.

5.2 HAZARDOUS CONDITIONS

A teacher does not have to work under conditions, which are immediately hazardous to himself/herself. "Immediately hazardous" shall mean a situation, which could cause death or serious physical harm to the teacher. Where a teacher has good and sufficient reason to believe the situation is immediately hazardous, he/she shall notify the principal who shall make the determination. If the principal determines that the situation is not immediately hazardous, the teacher must perform the job assigned, or, if he/she disagrees, he/she may be sent home without pay. If the situation is not immediately hazardous to the teacher, the teacher may be disciplined by the Board for his/her refusal to work. In any event, no teacher shall take any steps to prevent another from working. A committee equally represented by teachers and administrators shall meet with state, county, and city public safety officials to review Board policy concerning emergency procedures, including bomb scares. The Hazardous Conditions Committee report shall remain in force in its current form with the following exception: It shall be the Principal's discretion as to whether or not evacuation is to proceed. In order to evaluate the effectiveness of the district's critical incident planning, the W.T.A. president may request to meet with the Superintendent to review the conduct of any critical incident.

ARTICLE 6 VACANCIES AND TRANSFERS

6.0 VACANCIES

The Superintendent shall have posted in all school buildings a notice of all known vacancies of jobs requiring a teaching, required nursing, or administrative certificate to be performed in the District, including promotional positions. Positions that must be filled due to a teacher's bumping rights (during a reduction-in-force) or recall rights shall not be considered as new or vacant positions. Vacancy notices shall be emailed to all employees; said notices shall also be posted in each building. Such notice shall contain the certificate of requirements; a statement of the required qualifications and/or experience; and salary range and shall be posted for at least ten (10) days. A teacher applicant who has the requirements, qualifications and/or experience set forth in said notice shall be given an interview for said vacancy. The Board may fill the vacancy temporarily during said ten (10) days posting period within its discretion. Although the Board shall determine who shall fill the vacancy, the Board shall consider at least the following factors: licenses and endorsements, qualifications, merit and ability (including performance evaluations if available), and relevant experience, provided that seniority with the District will not be considered as a factor unless all other factors are determined by the District to be equal. The Board's selection decision is not subject to review under the grievance procedure, provided the District adheres to the procedural requirements for filling new or vacant teaching positions established in this Article. Nothing in this Agreement shall obligate the Board to select any applicant or fill a vacancy.

6.1 NOTIFICATION OF ASSIGNMENT

All staff members shall be given written notice of their tentative assignment for the forthcoming school year as to school and grade level and/or course assignments by no later than ten (10) days prior to the last day of student attendance for the school year. In the event changes in such assignments are made, the teacher affected, and the Association shall be notified promptly. No assignments shall be changed arbitrarily.

6.2 VOLUNTARY TRANSFERS

Any teacher may apply for transfer to another building, grade level, or subject area where a vacancy exists and for which he/she is licensed and qualified. Such applications, with a copy to the Superintendent, shall be in writing to the building principal where the vacancy exists. When filling such vacancy, the best-qualified person as determined by the Board under the factors set forth in Article 6.0 above shall be employed and the decision shall not be grievable, provided the procedures set forth in this provision have been followed. If the request for transfer is denied, the administrator denying the request shall set forth his/her reasons for the denial in writing and notify the individual making the request within five (5) days from the date of the denial.

6.3 INVOLUNTARY TRANSFERS

Teachers may be involuntarily transferred to another building, grade level or subject area no involuntary transfer will be made arbitrarily or capriciously, for example any transfer in violation of 6.0 Except as required for reduction-in-force, the administration will attempt to avoid involuntary transfers without the teacher's consent. When it becomes necessary to make an involuntary transfer, the Board shall consider the factors set forth in Article 6.0 above. The affected teacher shall be promptly notified in writing with the reason for the transfer and his/her selection. The Board will be notified that the impending transfer is involuntary and will consider the interest and aspirations of the teacher when selecting a teacher for involuntary transfer. The Board will make the final decision as to transfers and its decision shall not be grievable, provided the procedures set forth in this provision have been followed. A teacher who objects to such transfer may resign. No reprisals will be taken against any teacher who objects to an involuntary transfer but who elects to accept such a transfer. Said objection should not appear in the teacher's personnel file.

6.4 SENIORITY

Seniority shall be defined as continuous full-time service as a teacher within the District. Service shall be computed from the date of employment as a full-time teacher (i.e., Board hiring date). Continuous service will not be interrupted by any long-term Board-approved leave of absence that extends beyond FMLA leave, but seniority will not accrue during such leaves. In the event that seniority is equal between teachers, the following tie-breakers shall be used in this order:

- 1. Previous years of experience inside the District as a teacher.
- 2. Lane position on the salary schedule.
- 3. Experience outside the District for which salary schedule credit was given.
- 4. In-District work experience.
- 5. Principal's written recommendation.
- 6. By lot.

By January 15 of each year, all teachers shall notify the Superintendent's Office in writing of those subjects or grades for which they are certified or qualified to teach. No changes shall be made in this declaration until January 15 of the following year.

Prior to March 1 annually, teachers will be notified of their seniority ranking, performance evaluation RIF grouping, and their qualifications for positions. Any disagreement with this information must be indicated in writing to the Superintendent or designee by the deadline date set forth in the notification. The information will be used to prepare the seniority list and the list of sequence of honorable dismissals required under the *School Code*.

6.5 REDUCTION IN FORCE RECALL RIGHTS

Recall rights for teachers whose active employment has been terminated due to reduction in force are as outlined in the *School Code*.

ARTICLE 7 CURRICULUM DEVELOPMENT, INCLUSION, AND MENTORING

7.0 CURRICULUM DEVELOPMENT AND IMPROVEMENT

The development of new programs, writing and rewriting of curriculum, and the improvement of existing programs for the schools is an important part of the continuing advancement of the District. Teachers shall have the opportunity to participate in and make suggestions for the development of new and improved curriculum programs. Such participation shall be voluntary. Teachers may submit a proposal to the Administration for extra compensation for said major curriculum projects. The Board may, within its discretion, authorize extra compensation to teachers for major curriculum development.

A. Classifications

Curriculum projects will be classified into one of three (3) categories:

- 1. Major Project The curriculum is being written for the first time. This would include new course offerings, new programs, etc. Major curriculum projects are completed in three (3) phases. Phase I consists of the proposal, Phrase II consists of the written curriculum, and Phase III consists of revisions completed after the first year of instruction.
- 2. Minor Project The curriculum project is a revision of an existing curriculum. This would include the incorporation of new texts, revised standards, etc. Phase I consists of the proposal, and Phase II consists of the revised curriculum.
- 3. Hourly Project Curriculum projects that do not fit the guidelines listed above.

B. Completion/Compensation Schedule

- 1. Major Project Phase I (proposal) is due to the building administrator by December 15th of the school year prior to implementation. Phase II (written curriculum) is due to the building administrator by September 1st of the implementation year. One-half (1/2) of the project stipend will be paid to the project participant within two (2) payroll periods of the submission and approval of the written curriculum. Phase III is due to the building administrator by the first day of school following the implementation year. The remainder of the project stipend will be paid to the participant within two (2) payroll periods of submission and approval of the instructional revisions.
- 2. Minor Project Phase I (proposal) is due to the building administrator by December 15th of the school year prior to implementation. Phase II (written

curriculum) is due to the building administrator by September 1st of the implementation year. The entire project stipend will be paid to the participant within two (2) payroll periods of the submission and approval of the written curriculum.

- 3. Hourly Project Deadlines will be agreed upon by the project participant and building administrator. Payment will be made to the participant within two (2) payroll periods of the submission and approval of the written project.
- 4. The administration shall provide an annual report of curriculum projects and payments to the Association President by December 15th of each school year.
- 5. Administrative review of all curriculum projects and their respective Phases shall occur within fifteen (15) school days of submission.

7.1 INCLUSION

The parties are committed to educating all students, regardless of their disability, race, or ethnic or cultural background through a continuum of academic, social, and emotional services, and to educating students with disabilities in the least restrictive environment, as determined by the applicable IEP or Section 504 team.

Regular education teachers may provide input in the evaluation of progress of any student in their classrooms. If the teacher feels there is a shortage of either support staff or training with respect to the needs of a student with a disability, the teacher may review the matter with the principal and superintendent, and training may be provided for the teacher and support personnel on the student's disability and on how best to accommodate the needs of the students within the classroom. While failure of the school district to comply with the input and review requirements of this section is subject to grievance procedures, the other aspects of inclusion shall not be grievable or arbitrable. In no event shall any remedy concerning this statement result in the interference with any IEP or the recommendation of the MDC.

7.2 TEACHER MENTORING PROGRAM

The Teacher Mentoring Program will assist newly employed teachers as they acquire the knowledge and skills appropriate to working in School District 201 and which are essential for the improvement of teaching and learning. Each Level I teacher (any teacher with less than five (5) years' full-time teaching experience) will participate in the Teacher Mentoring Program for a minimum of two years. Each Level I teacher will be partnered with a mentor for two (2) years. Each new teacher to the District with five (5) or more years' full-time teaching experience (Level II) will participate in the program for his/her initial year in the District. The mentor teacher shall be chosen from volunteers by the Building Principal. The mentor teacher, insofar as possible, shall be a tenured teacher with a minimum of five (5) years of teaching experience. Each mentor teacher shall receive a yearly stipend as

stipulated in the extra duty schedule in Appendix B. Both, the mentor and the mentee shall participate in the activities outlined in the District Mentoring Program. No changes shall be made to the program without input from the WTA. Mentor teachers shall not be involved in the evaluation of the mentee.

ARTICLE 8 PROFESSIONAL COMPENSATION AND RELATED PROVISIONS

8.0 SALARY STRUCTURE

A. The salary schedules for each year of this Agreement shall be as set forth in Appendix A which is attached to and incorporated in this Agreement. If the WTA ratifies this Agreement by August 16, 2021, retroactive payments for the 2020-2021 school year will be issued by October 15, 2021.

For the 2020-2021 school year, due to a modification to the teachers' salary schedule, teachers' placement on the salary schedule will be manually adjusted. Teachers will be moved down their 2019-2020 lane, if necessary, to a point where their salary is equal to or greater than their 2019-2020 salary. They will then be allowed their normal step and lane movement, which will determine their 2020-2021 salary. New hires in 2020-2021 will not have their placement adjusted but will receive any increase in salary attributable to their original step and lane. For the 2020-2021 school year, the base salary on the schedule will be increased by 1.0% over the 2019-2020 base salary.

For the 2021-2022 and 2022-2023 school years, teachers' salaries will be determined by their normal step and lane movement. For the 2021-2022 school year, the base salary on the schedule will be increased by 1.6% over the 2020-2021 base salary. For the 2022-2023 school year, the base salary on the schedule will be increased by 1.8% over the 2021-2022 base salary.

In the 2022-2023 school year only, if the percentage CPI-U published for the calendar year ending December 31st of the previous year (i.e., 2021) is greater than 2.0%, each teacher will be granted a non-compounding \$500 bonus, paid by September 15, 2022 via separate check. If, however, a teacher's \$500 bonus would cause their creditable earnings for the 2022-2023 school year to exceed their creditable earnings for the 2021-2022 school year by more than 6%, the \$500 bonus will instead be paid as a post-retirement bonus.

Teachers found unsatisfactory on the Professional Evaluation and Improvement Scale for the last evaluation of the school year will be placed on a remediation plan and receive no raise the following year. Following a successful remediation, the teacher would be placed the next year where the teacher would have been had no remediation been necessary.

B. Teachers may only move one (1) vertical step annually. Teachers who are off the Salary Schedule shall have \$750 added to their base salary for each corresponding lane change they earn with accumulated approved credit hours if the lane change would still keep the teacher off the schedule. Those teachers off the schedule at a Bachelors Degree shall have \$1,500 added to their base salary when they earn a Masters Degree if the lane change would still keep the teacher off the schedule.

- C. Any credit earned prior to a Masters Degree cannot be used for credit beyond the Masters Degree. An official transcript confirming advanced training completed before the start of school must be filed in the Business Office on or before October 1 for first semester implementation and on or before March 1 for second semester implementation in order to qualify for higher salary scale classification to be paid during the school year. No changes will be made in these allowances after the above dates.
- **D.** Teachers are required to obtain the Superintendent's approval for any graduate credit courses to be used for Salary Schedule purposes.

8.1 EXPERIENCE CREDIT

The teacher shall be awarded credit for teaching and extra duty experience outside of the District and other professional experience directly related to teaching, within the discretion of the Superintendent, but not more than nine (9) years on the Salary Schedule.

8.2 PAYROLL INSTALLMENTS

Paydays shall be on the 15th and 30th of each month. Teachers shall be paid in twenty-four (24) equal installments. When a holiday period exceeds two (2) consecutive school days, salary payment will be made by mail on the regular payday.

8.3 EXTRA DUTY PAY

- A. Extra duty pay shall be as listed in Appendix B. If, during the term of this Agreement, the Board, after consultation with the Association, shall create any additional extra duty jobs, the rate of pay shall be determined by the Board and the Association. The Board or its representative will consult with the WTA President prior to any changes in the published extra duty rates or job description.
- B. After consultation with the Association, the administration shall set the requirements for the extra duties, including the minimum amount of time to be involved. A practice of conducting any extra duty shall not obligate the Board to conduct the duty or assign a teacher or any number of teachers to the position.
- C. Any teacher who fully performs more than one extra duty shall receive the amount shown in Appendix B for each such extra duty.
- D. The administration shall post a listing of extra duty assignments for the following school year no later than May 1st. Teachers shall be given written notice of their extra duty assignments for the following year no later than ten (10) days prior to the last student attendance day of the year. If a teacher covers the supervision duty of an absent colleague, it will not result in a deduction from the absent teacher's pay or a payment to the teacher who covered the duty unless the two teachers submit documentation of the covered duty to the building principal within 2 business days

of the duty being covered. If such documentation is timely submitted, then the payment will be deducted from the absent teacher's pay and added to the covering teacher's pay. If a teacher is absent from such a duty and does not arrange for a colleague to cover the duty, the absent teacher will be docked the day's pay for that duty. In the event the District receives any wage claims before the Department of Labor or a court resulting from this arrangement, then (a) the above arrangement will cease, and teachers will be required to submit documentation for every supervision duty in order to be paid for such duty, and (b) the absent teacher who was paid for the duty(ies) will be required to reimburse the District for the full amount paid for such duty(ies).

- E. Assignments of duties set forth in Appendix B shall be voluntary, except that if there are no volunteers, the Board may assign the duty to the least senior qualified teacher; provided that (1) teachers whose initial contract of employment includes an extra duty assignment shall mandatorily be required to fulfill said extra duty assignment for the lesser of his/her term of employment, or five (5) years from date of original employment; (2) said teacher's contract shall set forth the requirements of this Section; (3) notwithstanding the above, if the teacher notifies the principal that the teacher no longer desires to perform the extra duty, the principal will make every effort to try to replace the teacher with a teacher who has substantially equal qualifications who volunteers to perform the extra duty. In no event shall a teacher be involuntarily assigned to the same duty set forth in Appendix B for more than one consecutive year. Teachers who teach primarily physical education, driver education and/or health are encouraged to coach at least one (1) sport while employed by District 201. If more than one teacher applies for a duty set forth in Appendix B, preference shall be given to the teacher with the greatest seniority if the teachers who have applied have the substantially equal qualifications.
- F. If a teacher has performed an extra duty for three (3) or more years and has not been reinstated for said duty, the specific reasons for non-reinstatement must be put in writing and given to the teacher at least five (5) days prior to the Board receiving notification from the administration.
- G. An advisor or coach shall not be assigned duties at an event(s) of the same nature on the same day where he/she is required to attend by those advisory or coaching responsibilities. If such duties must be completed by a coach or advisor, when no other qualified teacher is available for such duties, he/she will be compensated for said assigned duty. This section is capped at 3 occurrences per season and is not payable to the Athletic Director.

8.4 TRAVEL REIMBURSEMENT

Teachers who are regularly assigned to perform duties at more than one building or who are required to leave the District on school business shall receive mileage reimbursement at the then-current rate approved by the Internal Revenue Service.

8.5 PLANNING PERIOD TEACHING

If a teacher in junior or senior high school is asked to teach a class on a continuing basis for the entire school year, in lieu of his/her planning period, the teacher will receive an additional one-fifth (1/5) of the then current base pay paid to starting teachers with a Bachelor's Degree.

8.6 TUITION REIMBURSEMENT

- A. Where the Board requires a teacher to take courses, the Board shall reimburse the teacher at a tuition per credit hour rate equal to the credit hour rate then in effect at Northern Illinois University.
- B. A teacher who has reached the Master's plus 48 lane shall be reimbursed by the Board at a tuition for credit hour rate equal to the credit hour rate then in effect at Northern Illinois University for up to three (3) graduate hours per year for courses receiving prior approval from the Superintendent.

8.7 **LONGEVITY**

Teachers will annually receive a \$1,000.00 longevity step for the years of service in District 201 beginning with the 20th year and through the completion of the 24th year.

Teachers will annually receive a \$2,000.00 longevity step for the years of service in District 201 beginning with the 25th year of service.

Eligibility for this longevity step will be based upon Section 4.3A3 above (i.e. evaluative results must be satisfactory in all categories from the most recent evaluation.)

This longevity recognition will be paid at one time by the end of September of each year.

8.8 ILLINOIS TEACHER RETIREMENT SYSTEM

From within the compensation owed to a teacher on the Salary Schedule attached to this Agreement, the Board shall pick up and pay the required Illinois Teacher Retirement System (TRS) contribution on behalf of each teacher. An individual teacher shall have no right or claim to these funds except as they become available upon retirement or resignation from the TRS. The Board's pick-up and payment to the TRS shall be included in the appropriate amounts shown on the Salary Schedule. Such amount shall represent the combination of all regular salary benefits payable to each teacher and all amounts picked up and paid to the TRS by the Board. The Board shall not be required by this section or otherwise to pick-up and pay any additional amounts to the TRS.

The Association agrees that the Board's said payment of teacher contributions to the TRS is solely for the purpose of making such contributions non-taxable income for Federal Income Tax purposes and shall not affect the true compensation paid such teachers. The Association will not contend to the Board at any time in the future that said payments by

the Board from the teacher's compensation are not to be considered as compensation for any other purpose.

The Association shall hold the Board harmless and indemnify the Board against all liability, loss, and expense of whatever nature arising out of the Board's agreement to make payments on behalf of each teacher to the TRS. The Board may, in its sole discretion, deduct from each teacher's paycheck on a pro rata and otherwise reasonable basis any amounts, including penalties, which the Board is obligated to pay as a result of the improper or incorrect withholding of income or other taxes or contributions to the TRS, or the improper or incorrect reporting thereof, arising out of the Board's agreement to make payments on behalf of each teacher to the TRS.

8.9 CAP ON LANE MOVEMENT

Lane movement is capped at one lane change per year. However, those teachers who were approved for coursework (according to the 5/21/21 spreadsheet shared with the WTA by the Board) that would have led to more than one lane change in a year and submitted transcripts during this contract will be allowed to move up to two lanes in this contract only (i.e., they will be "grandfathered"). Individuals who earn two lanes of movement will not be denied the movement, but it will be applied one year at a time (e.g., an individual who earns two lanes in 2022-2023 will receive one lane movement in 2022-2023 and the additional lane movement in 2023-2024).

ARTICLE 9 LEAVES

9.0 SICK LEAVE

- A. Full-time teachers will be allowed a maximum of fourteen (14) days sick leave per year with an unlimited accumulation of the unused portion. Part-time teachers covered by this Agreement shall receive pro rata sick leave. Teachers shall receive a notice of their accumulated sick days within thirty (30) days of the start of the school year. The immediate family for purposes of this Section shall include: parents, spouse, brothers, sisters, children, step-children, grandparents, grandchildren, parents-in-law, brothers-in-law, sisters-in-law, legal guardians, and any other person who lives in the teacher's residence as a member of the household, except servants.
- B. A statement from the teacher's doctor or a doctor of the Board's choice and expense may be required by the administration to establish eligibility for sick leave when abuse of the sick leave provisions is suspected or when there has been a record of excessive or repetitive absences or where the teacher has been absent three (3) or more consecutive days. A doctor's statement shall also be required for any absence for birth beyond thirty (30) school days.
- C. If a teacher is terminated because of a Reduction in Force (RIF), the District will pay the teacher one-half (1/2) the then current substitute rate per unused day of sick leave up to sixty-four (64) days. The teacher must accept or reject this option by August 30 of the year in which he/she was RIFed.
- D. When a teacher has been absent due to illness less than five (5) days in a school year, that teacher shall gain an additional day of personal business leave for the next school year. He or she may accumulate no more than two (2) such days based on this attendance provision. All provisions of Section 9.1, applying to Board-granted personal business days, also apply to these good-attendance personal business days.
- E. A teacher who is absent because of disability or incapacity shall be deemed temporarily disabled as defined below and shall be entitled to maintain his/her employment rights. The period of temporary disability shall be calculated from the initial date of a teacher's absence:

Employed in District	Temporary Disability
0 thru 4 years -	less than 60 consecutive school days or the exhaustion of paid leave, whichever happens last.
5 thru 20 years -	less than 135 consecutive school days, or for less than 102 out of 135 school days from the same illness or incapacity or the exhaustion of paid leave, whichever happens last.

21 or more years -

less than 180 consecutive school days, or for less than 135 out of 180 school days from the same illness or incapacity or exhaustion of paid leave, whichever happens last.

If a temporarily disabled teacher does not have sufficient accumulated sick leave days or unpaid leave under the federal *Family and Medical Leave Act* to cover the duration of his/her absence, the Board shall grant the teacher an unpaid leave of absence for the period of temporary disability, but not to exceed the number of days shown above as calculated from the onset of the disability.

Any teacher who remains disabled or incapacitated after the period of temporary disability defined above and after the exhaustion of all accumulated sick leave days may request an additional extended leave of absence without pay. In its sole discretion, and considering any reasonable accommodations as required under the *Americans with Disabilities Act*, the Board may grant a such a request in accordance with the terms and conditions applicable to all unpaid leaves as set forth in Sections 9.8 of this Agreement.

9.1 SICK LEAVE BANK

Teachers shall be eligible to participate on a voluntary basis in a District 201 Sick Leave Bank in accordance with the following terms and conditions:

- A. The sick leave bank shall be used only for the catastrophic personal illness, disability, or injury of an employee which requires continuous and prolonged absence from work. The Sick Leave Bank shall not be available for illness, disability, or injury of any other person related to the employee or to a teacher on an unpaid leave of absence.
- B. A teacher may enroll in the Bank by signing an authorization form agreeing to contribute one (1) day of his/her sick leave to the Bank. The employee thereby becomes a participant. No additional contributions will be required until such time as the Bank is depleted to the number of days equal to twice the number of participants. All participant contributions of sick days are irrevocable.
- C. An teacher who is a current participant and who has a catastrophic illness, disability, or injury which requires continuous and prolonged absence from work, as determined by the District Sick Leave Bank Advisory Board, shall be able to utilize sick days from the Bank after his/her own accrued sick and personal leave days have been exhausted and a five (5) day salary deduction period has transpired for each illness or disability. The teacher must submit a written request to the Advisory Board that identifies the reason for the request and the number of Bank days needed. The Advisory Board may also require additional information regarding the teacher's illness, disability, or injury (i.e., a report from the teacher's physician confirming the reason and the prognosis which necessitates use of the

Bank for the number of days requested by the teacher). The teacher must also satisfy any other requirements for use of the Bank established by the Advisory Board.

- D. The maximum number of Bank sick days that may be used for any single illness, disability, or injury shall be sixty (60) days, granted in increments of no more than twenty (20) days at a time. After twenty (20) days, the teacher will submit to the District Sick Leave Bank Advisory Board any additional documentation that may be required by the Advisory Board to determine the teacher's need for additional days, and the Advisory Board may approve an additional increment of days.
- **E.** Participants utilizing sick leave days from the Bank will not be required to replace those days.
- **F.** A participant withdrawing from the Sick Bank for whatever reason will not be allowed to withdraw his/her contributed sick days.
- G. Teachers appointed by the Association shall serve on a District Sick Leave Bank Advisory Board with other District employee groups implement and administer the Bank. The Advisory Board must adopt rules and procedures for the administration of the Bank and for the determination of issues relating to eligibility, enrollment and participation, and utilization of the Bank, including criteria for catastrophic illnesses, which determinations shall be final and not reviewable or appealable by a teacher. The Advisory Board shall provide appropriate regular and timely reports on the use and administration of the Bank to the Superintendent or designee, which shall be responsible for all record keeping.
- H. At the time of retirement, a teacher who has accumulated sick days in excess of 340 may donate up to 30 unused/uncompensated days to the Sick Leave Bank.

9.2 PERSONAL BUSINESS LEAVE

The Board shall grant to full-time teachers one (1) day of personal leave per year at full pay that can be used for personal business. Personal business days may accumulate up to two (2) days. Accumulated personal business days above set limits in both accounts shall be credited to accumulated sick leave account. Part-time teachers covered by this Agreement shall receive pro rata personal leave. Personal business leave shall be for business that cannot be conducted at times other than during the teacher's workday. Teachers shall, in writing, generally state the reason for their absence in accordance with the form attached as Appendix B hereto. In order to be eligible for personal leave, the teacher must give the principal forty-eight (48) hours' notice, where possible, or if not possible, as soon thereafter as the teacher knows of the reason to be absent for personal leave. Personal business days shall not be allowed or taken before or after a holiday, or a holiday weekend, with the exception of religious holidays. In the event too many teachers request personal leave, resulting in adverse efficiency in the operation of any school or part thereof, the Administration may limit the number of teachers who take personal business leave based upon department, subject team and based upon last asked, first denied.

A teacher may, for emergency purposes only, request an additional personal business day. The request is to be submitted to the Superintendent on the regular form at least seventy-two (72) hours or as soon as possible before the requested personal business day. The Superintendent will act on the request and notify the teacher as soon as possible.

9.3 BEREAVEMENT LEAVE

A teacher shall be granted up to four (4) days of absence with pay due to a death of the teacher's immediate family as defined in Section 9.0 above. A teacher shall be granted one day of absence with pay due to the death of the teacher's grand-parents-in-law, aunt, or uncle. Upon request, proof of death shall be provided. Any additional leave shall be deducted from sick leave.

9.4 RELIGIOUS OBSERVANCE LEAVE

Where a day(s) of required religious observance coincides with a teaching day and the obligations of religious practice on such day cannot be fulfilled during non-school hours, the Board shall grant 2 paid days of religious observance leave. If additional days are required for the observance of a religious holiday, the teacher may use a personal or sick day(s) without penalty or loss of incentives as outlined in Article 9.0 section D.

9.5 JURY DUTY LEAVE

Teachers who lose time on days which they are scheduled to teach due to serving on a jury or who are subpoenaed to testify in court on behalf of the District shall suffer no loss of salary thereby, provided they remit to the Board, via payroll deduction, any money they receive for such jury duty or said court appearance and they give notice to the principal of the duties of their absences upon receipt of any notice of jury duty or said court appearance. Evidence of jury service shall be presented upon request. The teacher may keep monies received for meals, lodging, or mileage.

9.6 MILITARY LEAVE

A teacher inducted into the armed forces or recalled from reserve status to active duty must make application for reinstatement no later than ninety (90) calendar days after discharge. Said teacher shall be entitled to reinstatement and all benefits provided them under applicable laws. A teacher who is required to attend reserve camp for up to two (2) weeks or is activated for a state or national emergency during the school term shall suffer no loss of salary thereby, provided the teacher (1) remits to the Board any money received for such reserve camp duty; (2) gives notice to the principal of the period of such reserve camp duties upon receipt of such notice from the military; and (3) joins with the Superintendent, upon request, to seek to postpone such reserve camp duty until after the completion of the school term.

9.7 LONG-TERM PARENTAL LEAVE

- A. After at least 12 months and 1250 hours of full-time teaching in the District, a teacher shall be eligible for a long-term unpaid parental leave of absence (i.e., extending beyond FMLA leave time) following the birth or adoption of a child, subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Section 9.7. Said teacher may, in writing, request a leave of absence without pay for the balance of that school year and for not more than one school year thereafter. A parental leave of absence may begin when the teacher so desires, but no later than ninety (90) calendar days following the birth or adoption of the child; however, requests for such leave must be made before the teacher leaves his/her teaching responsibilities because he/she is unable to perform her duties satisfactorily or when the birth of his/her child is imminent as certified by the teacher's doctor or a doctor of the Board's choice if the Board so desires. A long-term parental leave of absence shall end on the day prior to the beginning of the school year.
- **B.** A teacher shall be eligible for a parental leave of absence upon the birth of a child of his/hers under the applicable conditions set forth in Section 9.7.
- C. A statement from the teacher's doctor or a doctor of the Board's choice and expense, if the Board so desires, may be required to establish the teacher's ability to perform or resume her duties.
- D. Absence on parental leave shall not be considered a break in service under this Agreement, but the period of the leave shall not count as service in the District for any purpose. Parental leave shall not affect the tenure rights of a teacher. A teacher granted a parental leave of absence must teach at least 90 days of a school year to accrue seniority credit and advance on the salary schedule.
- E. A teacher on parental leave of absence, if he/she so desires, shall have priority on substitute assignments, and if a vacancy occurs while he/she is on leave, he/she will be offered, upon request, an opportunity to fill said vacancy, provided that (1) it is an elementary teacher filling an elementary position, a junior high teacher filling a junior high vacancy, a special teacher filling a vacancy in a specialty, a senior high school teacher filling a high school vacancy in a subject he/she is qualified to teach, or (2) if the Superintendent approves and further provided if it were applicable, the Board finds he or she were capable of teaching the subject matter involved, provided that the Board shall not be arbitrary or capricious in such finding.

If no such positions are available and after parental leave has been requested, the teacher miscarries or the child dies within two months of birth, the teacher on leave may request placement as a full-time substitute in the District at a yearly salary of BA. Step 1 on the District's Salary Schedule. The District shall so assign.

F. At the end of a teacher's parental leave, the teacher shall have a right to return to employment in the District, provided he/she notifies the Superintendent in writing before March 1 of the year the parental leave of absence shall end. If the position

he/she left is open, he/she may return to that position. If the position he/she left is filled or discontinued, he/she shall be placed in a position for which he/she is qualified. Nothing herein shall guarantee that a teacher will be returned to the same grade level, school, or position, which he/she held prior to his/her leave.

A teacher may receive an additional year of leave if he/she will work part-time in the District in a program for which he/she is qualified and which lends itself to part-time teaching and is in the best interest of the District as determined by the Board. Such requests for additional leave must be made in writing to the Superintendent by January 15 of the year in which the leave is to end.

- G. A teacher adopting a child of preschool age shall be entitled upon request to leave under this Section 9.6 during the first year after receiving such custody if this is necessary to fulfill the requirements for adoption, provided the teacher notifies his/her principal with a copy to the Superintendent not less than sixty (60) days prior to the requested leave.
- H. A teacher on parental leave may receive sick pay for the time he/she is physically incapable of performing his/her duties had he/she not taken such leave. A statement from the teacher's doctor, or a doctor of the Board's choice, may be required by the Administration to establish eligibility for sick leave. FMLA leave time shall also run concurrently with the parental leave.

SUMMARY

Following is a summary of options available to teachers contemplating leave in connection with the birth or adoption of a child.

- A. Teachers may use paid sick leave if available and return when medical disability ends, usually six weeks after a normal delivery (30 school days for birth or adoption).
- (FMLA) leave as outlined in Section 9.9(B). After sick leave has been used up or the disability ends, whichever occurs first, FMLA leave would continue for up to a total of twelve (12) weeks including the time on sick leave. After sick leave is no longer available, FMLA leave is without pay but would have health and dental insurance benefits continued on the same basis as if the teacher was working. Teachers delivering during the first or third quarters of the school year may request from the Superintendent an extension of FMLA leave to coincide with the end of the semester. Teachers taking only A and/or B above will be returned to the position the teacher would have held if the leave had not been taken. In addition to A and B above, tenured teachers may take a parental leave in accordance with Section 9.7. Sick leave and FMLA leave will be used concurrently with the parental leave. Sick leave will run until it is used up or the disability ends, whichever occurs first, and FMLA leave will begin with the use of sick leave and end twelve (12) weeks later.

Parental leave will end and the teacher returns to work as provided in Section 9.7. These two, larger term parental leave options are:

- C. If a tenured teacher does not wish to accept A or B above, he/she may request in writing parental leave for the balance of the school year and for not more than one (1) additional school year.
- D. A tenured teacher may receive an additional year of leave if he/she will work parttime in the District in a program for which he/she is qualified and which lends itself to part-time teaching and is in the best interest of the District as determined by the Board of Education. Such requests for additional leave must be made in writing to the Superintendent by January 15 of the year in which the leave is to end.

9.8 ASSOCIATION LEAVE

In the event that the Association desires to send representatives to local, state, or national conferences or on other business pertinent to Association affairs, these representatives shall be excused without loss of salary for an aggregate of not more than thirteen (13) days in any school term, provided that the Association reimburses the District for the cost of substitutes for all such days, and further provided, no one teacher may be excused for more than five (5) days.

In the event a teacher is serving as an elected member of the IEA-NEA Board of Directors, said teacher shall be granted the release time necessary for the fulfillment of such duties. Such released time shall be limited to ten (10) days per contract year. Requests should normally be made ten (10) days in advance and approved by the principal. The Association shall reimburse the Board for the cost of substitutes.

A leave of absence may be granted any teacher, upon written application, for the purpose of serving as an officer of the Association, the Illinois Education Association or the National Education Association. The leave of absence will be without pay for a period up to the term of the elected office. The contractual continued service status (tenure) shall not be affected because of absence while on leave as provided herein. Salary placement shall be equivalent to that which the teacher was entitled at the time the leave began. No more than two teachers may be on such leave at any given time.

9.9 UNPAID LEAVE OF ABSENCE

A. The Board may grant a teacher a leave of absence without pay for any reason where it deems the leave to be of benefit to the professional and educational program of the District or for care of extended illness in the immediate family. The grant and duration of such leaves shall be at the discretion of the Board. A teacher granted an unpaid leave of absence must teach at least 90 days of a school year to accrue seniority credit and advance on the salary schedule.

B. FMLA

Eligible teachers are entitled to up to twelve (12) work weeks of unpaid family and medical leave during a twelve (12) month period in accordance with the *Family and Medical Leave Act* (FMLA) of 1993, as calculated under the "rolling" 12-month period measured backward from the date the teacher uses any FMLA leave.

FMLA leave may be used in conjunction with other leaves taken under this Article 9 for a purpose consistent with the FMLA (i.e. sick leave, personal business leave, bereavement leave, parental leave, and unpaid leave of absence). Time on these leaves shall be counted against the leave time, which may be taken under the FMLA. A teacher returning within the twelve (12) weeks of a FMLA leave used in conjunction with any of the foregoing leaves, except parental leave, shall be returned to the position the teacher would have held if the leave had not been taken. Nothing in this section diminishes or expands the Board's or a teacher's rights and duties under the FMLA except as specifically provided in this section.

ARTICLE 10 RETIREMENT

10.0 RETIREMENT

In order to be eligible for the District 201 retirement benefits provided in Section 10.2 below, a teacher must:

- 1. Have ten (10) years of full-time teaching within the District immediately preceding retirement;
- 2. Submit an irrevocable letter of intent to retire to the District Office on or before February 1st of the year prior to the years in which the creditable earning increases provided under Section 10.2 below are applied before the teacher's actual date of retirement. However, due to the timing of negotiations, teachers have until September 24, 2021, to submit their letter of intent to retire, effective retroactive to the 2020-2021 school year or the 2021-2022 school year (retirement notices should indicate which year they are intended to take effect);
- 3. If the letter of intent to retire is submitted less than four (4) years from retirement, not cause the Board to be liable for any TRS contributions upon the teachers retirement (e.g., the teacher must not have had an increase in creditable earnings beyond 6% in the four (4) final years used for TRS pension calculations);
- 4. Receive an evaluative rating of satisfactory or above on the last evaluation prior to submitting his/her intent to retire letter and maintain an evaluation of satisfactory or above on evaluations after submitting an irrevocable letter of intent to retire;
- 5. Meet the TRS requirements and file for participation in the regular retirement program set forth by TRS (i.e., not retiring under the ERO program with a discount penalty); and
- 6. Retire at the end of the contract year stated in the teacher's intent letter.

All retiring teachers who meet the requirements set forth above are entitled to the benefits set forth in Sections 10.2, 10.3, and 10.4 below.

In the event that a teacher otherwise eligible for the benefits provided for in this section suffers a catastrophic injury or disability and is unable to continue his/her teaching duties at any time during the term of the contract, that teacher will receive the benefits of this section if he/she so applied for same in writing to the Superintendent prior to the catastrophic illness or disability.

10.1 [INTENTIONALLY OMITTED]

10.2 DISTRICT RETIREMENT PLAN

Any eligible teacher (see 10.0 above) electing to retire, who provides the Board with an irrevocable letter of intent to retire, shall be paid, in each of the final three (3) years of employment (or as many years of employment as are left prior to the date of retirement if the employee has given less than four years notice) a guaranteed 4% increase in creditable earnings. The 4% increase will be calculated based on the previous year's TRS credible earnings.

A teacher's TRS credible earnings (included, but not limited to vertical and horizontal salary schedule movement, stipends, salaries increase, longevity pay and retirement incentives) whether under the contract or otherwise shall not increase from one school year to the next by more than 6% except where Illinois statue allows a greater than 6% increase without penalty to the Board. Notwithstanding any contrary or other provision of this contract, including but not limited to any salary schedules, in the event a teacher's TRS creditable earning would increase by more than 6% in any given year of this contract, that teacher shall only receive the maximum increase allowed under this provision. If a teacher chooses to not perform an extra duty assignment from a previous year, the value of that stipend will be deducted from the teacher's annual increase in creditable earnings. If the teacher chooses to perform an additional stipended duty, that stipend will be considered to be within the 6% increase unless statue allows an exception to the 6% cap.

10.3 RETIREE INSURANCE

Upon submitting the irrevocable notice of intent to retire, a teacher eligible under Section 10.0 above may choose one of the following options that shall vest at the time of retirement.

- A. The District will contribute towards the retiree's cost of TRS retiree health insurance for a period of up to five (5) years or until the teacher is Medicare-eligible, whichever occurs first, at the single PPO rate or five (5) years or until the teacher is Medicare-eligible, whichever occurs first, at the single HMO rate, as long as the Board's annual contribution shall not exceed 50% of the single PPO rate.
- **B.** A retiring teacher may participate in the District's medical insurance program according to COBRA regulations, providing the retiree pays the premium at the current group rate and notifies the District pursuant to COBRA procedures of his/her intent to participate in the District plan.

10.4 UNUSED SICK LEAVE

Teachers eligible to retire under either Section 10.0 or 10.1 above will receive \$40 per day for any unused sick days, provided that those days are not also being used for TRS service credit. This payment will be made as a lump sum post-retirement payment after the last day of work and after the final paycheck for regular earnings, provided the teacher submits verification of the number of unused sick days not credited by TRS for service years.

10.5 POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Board agrees to provide the Retiree Insurance benefits under Section 10.3 and the Unused Sick Leave lump sum retirement incentive under Section 10.4 (collectively, the "post-retirement incentives"), if any, to any teacher who meets the requirements set forth in Section 10.0 and who is entitled to these post-retirement incentives. In agreeing to provide these post-retirement incentives, if any, the Board also agrees to sign a Post-Retirement Incentive Agreement (PRIA) with the employee, which guarantees the post-retirement incentives according to the terms of Section 10.3 and 10.4. The PRIA, attached hereto as Appendix C, makes the agreement to provide these post-retirement incentives enforceable and establishes the teacher's right to sue the Board to enforce the specific terms of the PRIA. In the event of the teacher's death before retirement or before this contract has been fully performed, the Board is still obligated to pay the Unused Sick Leave lump sum retirement incentive under Section 10.4, if any, to a designated party, or to such a person who has been designated in the teacher's will, or in the absence of either of the above, the teacher's estate.

Notwithstanding the execution of the PRIA between the teacher and the Board, the Union does not waive its right to file a grievance to enforce the terms of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 11 GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

11.0 OBJECTIVE

It is the declared objective of the Association and the Board to encourage the prompt resolution of grievances or complaints of teachers covered by this Agreement as they arise and to provide recourse to orderly procedures for the satisfactory adjustment of grievances or complaints.

11.1 PROCEDURE

- A. A "grievance" shall mean a complaint by a teacher, group of teachers, or the Association that there has been a violation or misinterpretation of the provisions of this Agreement. Administration answers to grievances shall include reasons.
- B. Informal Procedure It is understood that an attempt to resolve a potential grievance will be made informally through discussion between the grievant(s) and his/her immediate supervisor before a formal grievance is filed.
- C. Formal Procedure A grievance shall be processed as follows:

Step 1

Any grievant(s) who has/have a grievance shall submit it in writing, with the remedy sought, to and discuss it with his/her immediate supervisor. A grievance shall set forth the facts and the specific contract provisions upon which the complaint is based in sufficient detail to allow the immediate supervisor to respond thereto. The grievant(s)' supervisor shall answer all written grievances in writing within five (5) days after such presentation. The grievant(s) may have his/her Association representative(s) present if he/she wishes.

Step 2

If the grievance is not settled in Step 1 and the grievant(s) wishes to appeal, the grievance may be referred by him/her in writing to the superintendent (or to any other person designated by the Board) within ten (10) days after the answer in Step 1 and shall be signed by both the grievant(s) and the Association representative(s). The Superintendent or his designee shall discuss the grievance within five (5) days with the grievant(s) and the Association representative(s) at a time mutually agreeable to the parties. The Superintendent or his designee shall give his written answer to the Association and the grievant(s) within five (5)days following their meeting.

Step 3

If the grievance is not settled in Step 2 and the Association desires to appeal, it shall be referred in writing by the Association to the Board within ten (10) days after the answer in

Step 2. The Board shall, at its next meeting, at least five (5) days after receipt of the appeal, discuss the grievance with the grievant(s) and the Association representative(s). The Board shall give its written answer to the Association within ten (10) days after the Board meeting.

Step 4

If the grievance is not settled in accordance with the foregoing procedure, the Association (but not the grievant) may refer the grievance to arbitration within thirty (30) school days after receipt of the Board's answer in Step 3. The Association or the Board may submit the grievance to final and binding arbitration. The American Arbitration Association (AAA) shall be requested to submit the names of suggested arbitrators to the parties.

The parties shall select an arbitrator in accordance with AAA rules. The arbitrator shall have no right to amend, modify, nullify, ignore, add to, or subtract from the provisions of this Agreement or any applicable Board policy. He/she shall consider and decide only the specific issues submitted to him/her in writing and shall have no authority to make any decision or recommendation on any other issue not so submitted to him/her.

The arbitrator shall be without power to make decisions contrary to or inconsistent with or modifying or varying in any way the applicable laws and rules and regulations having the force and effect of the law.

The arbitrator shall submit in writing his/her decision within thirty (30) days following close of the hearing or the submission of briefs by the parties, whichever is later. The arbitrator's decision shall be based solely upon his/her interpretation of the meaning or application of the specific terms of this Agreement involved to the facts of the grievance presented. The decision of the arbitrator shall be final and binding on the parties and teachers and shall be immediately implemented.

The fees of the arbitrator shall be divided equally between the Board and the Association. All other expenses shall be borne by the party incurring them.

D. A grievance clearly on behalf of all teachers employed by the Board, or one involving more than one building, or on the behalf of one of the teachers in a building may be initiated at Step 2.

11.2 TIME LIMIT FOR FILING

No grievance shall be entertained or processed unless it is submitted within thirty (30) days after the grievant(s) had knowledge or should have had knowledge of the last asserted violation of the Agreement giving rise to the grievance. The failure to act within the time limits herein shall bar further appeals. Time is of the essence to this Agreement. Time limits may be extended only by mutual written agreement. Failure to communicate a decision within the specified time limits shall permit the Association to proceed to the next step.

11.3 DEFINITION OF "DAYS"

Wherever in this Article "days" are used, the parties intend them to be school days, unless noted otherwise. During the summer, "days" shall mean "week day."

11.4 REPRESENTATION

Association representative(s) may be present at any meeting, hearing, appeal, or other proceedings (except for board executive sessions where the grievant is not present) relating to a grievance which has been formally presented. Nothing contained herein shall be construed as limiting the right of any grievant(s) having a grievance to discuss the matter informally with his/her supervisor and having the grievance adjusted without intervention of the Association, provided the adjustment is not inconsistent with the terms of this Agreement.

11.5 REPRISALS

No reprisals of any kind shall be taken by the Board or the Administration against a grievant(s) because of his/her participation in this grievance procedure. All documents, communications, and records dealing with the processing of a grievance shall be filed separately from the personnel files of the participants.

ARTICLE 12 INSURANCE

12.0 INSURANCE COVERAGE

The Board will offer insurance coverage for all eligible teachers. Coverage becomes effective for eligible teachers on the first day that they are actively at work and, for teachers who work through the remainder of the school year, coverage continues over the summer until August 31 or until they enroll in an insurance plan with another employer, whichever occurs first.

12.1 INSURANCE ELIGIBILITY

Teachers who are employed at 0.6 time or more will be eligible to participate in the District insurance plans.

12.2 INSURANCE COMMITTEE

A District Insurance Committee made up of Association members, the District Business Manager, WESPA representatives, and other people as directed by the Board, will meet yearly, starting no later than January, to review the insurance experience and be involved in the process of renewal, selection of new insurance carriers, and/or insurance specifications. The Insurance Committee may make recommendations to the Board and the Association regarding provisions of the medical insurance plan. No changes will be made in the medical insurance plan without the express approval of both the Board and the Association.

Teachers will be given notice of changes in premiums at least fifteen (15) calendar days prior to the renewal date to review the information and make enrollment decisions.

12.3 HEALTH INSURANCE

- A. The Board will continue to offer HMO and PPO health insurance programs. Teachers may freely choose in which plans to participate.
- B. The Board will fund a portion of the medical insurance premiums for teachers who participate in the District health insurance programs. For the duration of this Agreement, the Board will contribute 95% of the cost of individual insurance for teachers, including 95% of any increase in individual coverage costs up to 5% effective each January 1. The Board will contribute 90% of the cost of family coverage for teachers hired prior to 1991 and 80% of the cost of family insurance for those teachers hired after 1991, including 90%, and 80% respectively, of any increase in family coverage costs up to 5% effective each January 1. If the individual or family insurance premium increases exceed 5% in any year of this Agreement, then the teachers shall pay for 75% of the amount of increase exceeding 5% and the Board shall pay for 25% of the increase exceeding 5%. The Board and teacher contribution costs will be calculated based on the dollar amounts paid in

the prior year of the health insurance program, in the same manner as in the preceding contract.

12.4 DISABILITY INSURANCE

The disability income benefit shall be equal to sixty (60) percent of the teacher's salary at the time of disability, until retirement age as determined by the Social Security Administration, but not lower than age 65. Eligibility is subject to the plan's requirements.

12.5 LIFE INSURANCE

The life insurance benefit shall be equal to the teacher's current contractual salary rounded to the next highest \$1,000, but not exceeding \$50,000. Eligibility is subject to the plan's requirements.

12.6 DENTAL INSURANCE

Minimally the Board will offer a dental HMO and PPO. Both programs should have substantially the same benefits. The programs chosen shall be agreeable to the Association and to the Board, while the ultimate right of selection remains with the Board, and the chosen program will remain in effect through this contract. The Board shall pay sixty percent (60%) of the cost of individual dental insurance for those teachers participating in the plan. The Board shall pay the individual rate plus twenty percent (20%) of the family dental insurance costs.

12.7 FLEXIBLE BENEFIT PLAN

The Board shall maintain a salary reduction plan, which meets the requirements of Section 125 of the *Internal Revenue Code* and Treasury Regulations promulgated there under. If, at any time, Section 125 or related Regulations are amended, the parties shall promptly revise the plan to comply with the amendment, to the extent the amendment is required to maintain plan compliance.

A teacher may annually elect to participate in the salary reduction plan by choosing to receive benefits described above and in the District's formal flexible benefits plan. The amount elected shall be deducted from the teacher's compensation. The plan shall be on the calendar year. By November 30 of the year preceding the plan year, or during the plan open enrollment period, if different, each teacher shall, in writing, designate the dollar amount(s) elected for that year for each of the following benefits:

- 1. Premiums for group medical, dental, or other insurance, single or dependent coverage, to the extent such premiums are not paid by the Board; and/or
- 2. Reimbursement for any amount of deductibles or out of pocket expenses under the group insurance described in (1) above, and for any other qualified unreimbursed medical care expenses as defined and allowed under the *Internal Revenue Code*, up to the annual limits established by the IRS. Only teachers who meet the eligibility

requirements for this benefit and are offered coverage under the Board's group medical insurance plan may participate in the medical reimbursement plan.

- 3. By law, Section 125 money may not be used for any cosmetic procedures.
- 4. Reimbursement for qualified dependent care assistance as defined and allowed under the *Internal Revenue Code* and plan document.

The amounts designated may not be changed during the plan year, unless there is a change in family status or other circumstances provided in Section 125 and/or Treasury Regulations promulgated there under. Any amounts designated for which valid reimbursement claims are not made on a timely basis will be forfeited and not otherwise paid to the teacher during that year or carried over to a succeeding plan year, and such amounts become the property of the plan.

The dollar amount of the designated benefits elected pursuant to the plan will be deducted in equal amounts from the teacher's salary payments during the plan year.

Claims for reimbursement must be for services rendered during the section 125 plan year.

The District Insurance Committee will recommend a third party to administer the program. The Board reserves the right to make the final selection of administrator of the program. Fees associated with the program will be paid by the teacher.

ARTICLE 13 EFFECT OF AGREEMENT

13.0 COMPLETE UNDERSTANDING

The terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement represent the full and complete understanding and commitment between the parties hereto. The terms and conditions may be altered, changed added to, deleted from, or modified only through the voluntary mutual consent of the parties in a written amendment.

13.1 BOARD POLICIES

No policy of the Board shall be contrary to the terms of this Agreement.

13.2 SAVINGS CLAUSE

Should any article, section, or clause of this Agreement be declared illegal by a court of competent jurisdiction, said article, section, or clause, as the case may be, shall be automatically deleted from this Agreement to the extent that it violated the law. The remaining articles, sections, and clauses shall remain in full force and effect for the duration of the Agreement if not affected by the deleted article, section, or clause.

13.3 CHALLENGING THE ASSOCIATION

Any organization or group of teachers which wish to challenge the Association as sole bargaining agent for the teachers shall present to the Board a petition signed by at least 30 percent of the teachers represented by the Association requesting an election. Said petition shall be filed with the Secretary of the Board between September 15 and November 1. A referendum shall be held within forty-five (45) days thereafter. If the referendum is certified as valid, the organization receiving a majority of the votes cast in such referendum shall be declared the exclusive representative and recognized by the Board as such. If there are more than two choices and no choice receives a majority of votes cast, there shall be a run-off second election between the two choices that polled the greatest number of votes.

ARTICLE 14 NEGOTIATIONS AND TERMINATION

14.0 NEGOTIATIONS

- A. The Board agrees to participate in good faith negotiations with the duly designated representatives of the Association.
- **B.** Both parties agree that it is their mutual responsibility to meet at reasonable times and negotiate in good faith.
- C. Both parties agree that it is their mutual responsibility to confer upon their respective representatives the necessary power and authority to make proposals, consider proposals, make counter-proposals in the course of negotiations, and to reach tentative agreements. When tentative agreement is reached on all matters being negotiated, the items shall be promptly reduced to writing and submitted to the membership of the Association for ratification and to the Board for official approval.
- D. When an impasse has been declared by either party, the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service shall be requested by the parties to appoint a mediator from its staff. The mediator shall meet in private with the parties or their representatives, or both, forthwith, either jointly or separately, and shall take such private steps as he may deem appropriate to persuade the parties to resolve their differences and effect a mutually acceptable agreement. The mediator shall not, without the written consent of both parties, make finding of fact or recommend terms of settlement to anyone other than the parties involved, which recommendations shall not be made public.

14.1 INDIVIDUAL CONTRACTS

Individual contracts, if any, shall conform to the terms and conditions of employment agreed to by the Board and Association in this Agreement.

14.2 AGREEMENT IN EFFECT

This Agreement shall be effective on the date of ratification and approval and shall remain in force and effect through the day before the first teacher day of the 2023-2024 school year. The parties shall commence bargaining for a successor Agreement by February 1 of the final year of the contract, unless a later date is mutually agreed.

Signature page to follow

This Agreement is signed this 24th day of August, 2021.

In witness thereof:

FOR THE WESTMONT TEACHERS' ASSOCIATION

FOR THE BOARD OF EDUCATION, COMMUNITY UNIT SCHOOL DISTRICT 201

President

Secretary

Y: Drovidor

Secretary

APPENDIX A-1 2020-2021 Salary Schedule

	BA	BA+12	BA+24	MA	MA+12	MA+24	MA+36	MA+48
1	50,188	52,446	54,705	58,720	61,229	63,738	66,248	68,757
2	52,446	54,705	56,963	61,229	63,738	66,248	68,757	71,267
3	54,705	56,963	59,221	63,738	66,248	68,757	71,267	73,776
4	56,963	59,221	61,480	66,248	68,757	71,267	73,776	76,285
5	59,221	61,480	63,738	68,757	71,267	73,776	76,285	78,795
6	61,480	63,738	65,997	71,267	73,776	76,285	78,795	81,304
7	63,738	65,997	68,255	73,776	76,285	78,795	81,304	83,813
8	65,997	68,255	70,514	76,285	78,795	81,304	83,813	86,323
9	68,255	70,514	72,772	78,795	81,304	83,813	86,323	88,832
10	70,514	72,772	75,031	81,304	83,813	86,323	88,832	91,342
11	72,772	75,031	77,289	83,813	86,323	88,832	91,342	93,851
12		77,289	79,548	86,323	88,832	91,342	93,851	96,360
13		79,548	81,806	88,832	91,342	93,851	96,360	98,870
14		81,806	84,064	91,342	93,851	96,360	98,870	101,379
15			86,323	93,851	96,360	98,870	101,379	103,889
16			88,581	96,360	98,870	101,379	103,889	106,398
17				98,870	101,379	103,889	106,398	108,907
18					103,889	106,398	108,907	111,417
19						108,907	111,417	113,926
20							113,926	116,435

APPENDIX A-2 2021-2022 Salary Schedule

	BA	BA+12	BA+24	MA	MA+12	MA+24	MA+36	MA+48
1	50,991	53,285	55,580	59,659	62,209	64,758	67,308	69,857
2	53,285	55,580	57,874	62,209	64,758	67,308	69,857	72,407
3	55,580	57,874	60,169	64,758	67,308	69,857	72,407	74,956
4	57,874	60,169	62,464	67,308	69,857	72,407	74,956	77,506
5	60,169	62,464	64,758	69,857	72,407	74,956	77,506	80,055
6	62,464	64,758	67,053	72,407	74,956	77,506	80,055	82,605
7	64,758	67,053	69,347	74,956	77,506	80,055	82,605	85,154
8	67,053	69,347	71,642	77,506	80,055	82,605	85,154	87,704
9	69,347	71,642	73,937	80,055	82,605	85,154	87,704	90,254
10	71,642	73,937	76,231	82,605	85,154	87,704	90,254	92,803
11	73,937	76,231	78,526	85,154	87,704	90,254	92,803	95,353
12		78,526	80,820	87,704	90,254	92,803	95,353	97,902
13		80,820	83,115	90,254	92,803	95,353	97,902	100,452
14		83,115	85,409	92,803	95,353	97,902	100,452	103,001
15			87,704	95,353	97,902	100,452	103,001	105,551
16			89,999	97,902	100,452	103,001	105,551	108,100
17				100,452	103,001	105,551	108,100	110,650
18					105,551	108,100	110,650	113,199
19						110,650	113,199	115,749
20							115,749	118,298

APPENDIX A-3 2022-2023 Salary Schedule

	BA	BA+12	BA+24	MA	MA+12	MA+24	MA+36	MA+48
1	51,909	54,244	56,580	60,733	63,328	65,924	68,519	71,115
2	54,244	56,580	58,916	63,328	65,924	68,519	71,115	73,710
3	56,580	58,916	61,252	65,924	68,519	71,115	73,710	76,306
4	58,916	61,252	63,588	68,519	71,115	73,710	76,306	78,901
5	61,252	63,588	65,924	71,115	73,710	76,306	78,901	81,496
6	63,588	65,924	68,260	73,710	76,306	78,901	81,496	84,092
7	65,924	68,260	70,596	76,306	78,901	81,496	84,092	86,687
8	68,260	70,596	72,932	78,901	81,496	84,092	86,687	89,283
9	70,596	72,932	75,267	81,496	84,092	86,687	89,283	91,878
10	72,932	75,267	77,603	84,092	86,687	89,283	91,878	94,474
11	75,267	77,603	79,939	86,687	89,283	91,878	94,474	97,069
12		79,939	82,275	89,283	91,878	94,474	97,069	99,664
13		82,275	84,611	91,878	94,474	97,069	99,664	102,260
14		84,611	86,947	94,474	97,069	99,664	102,260	104,855
15			89,283	97,069	99,664	102,260	104,855	107,451
16			91,619	99,664	102,260	104,855	107,451	110,046
17				102,260	104,855	107,451	110,046	112,642
18					107,451	110,046	112,642	115,237
19						112,642	115,237	117,832
20							117,832	120,428

APPENDIX B-1 2020-2021 Stipend Schedule

Base Salary	\$38,709 Experience		Experience		Experience	
Activity	1-3 Years		4-6 Years		7+ Years	
Athletics	0.045					
WJHS Athletic Director + 1 release period WHS Athletic Director + 0.5 release	0.075 0.15	2,903.14	0.08	3,096.68	0.085	3,290.23
Baseball	0.13	5,806.28	0.17	6,580.46	0.19	7,354.63
Senior Varsity	0.16	6,193.37	0.175	6,774.00	0.19	7,354.63
Senior High/Frosh/Soph	0.11	4,257.94	0.125	4,838.57	0.14	5,419.20
Basketball						
Senior High Varsity	0.19	7,354.63	0.205	7,935.25	0.22	8,515.88
Senior High Sophomore	0.13	5,032.11	0.145	5,612.74	0.16	6,193.37
Senior High Freshman	0.11	4,257.94	0.125	4,838.57	0.14	5,419.20
Junior High Varsity	0.1	3,870.86	0.12	4,645.03	0.14	5,419.20
Junior High Junior Varsity	0.07	2,709.60	0.085	3,290.23	0.1	3,870.86
Junior High 6th Grade	0.06	2,322.51	0.07	2,709.60	0.08	3,096.68
Cheerleading/Poms						
Pon Poms	0.06	2,322.51	0.07	2,709.60	0.08	3,096.68
Senior High Football	0.06	2,322.51	0.07	2,709.60	0.08	3,096.68
Senior High Basketball	0.08	3,096.68	0.09	3,483.77	0.1	3,870.86
Junior High 7th Grade	0.035	1,354.80	0.045	1,741.89	0.055	2,128.97
Junior High 8th Grade	0.05	1,935.43	0.06	2,322.51	0.07	2,709.60
Cross Country						
Senior High Varsity	0.17	6,580.46	0.185	7,161.08	0.2	7,741.71
Senior High Frosh/Soph	0.08	3,096.68	0.095	3,677.31	0.11	4,257.94
Junior High	0.06	2,322.51	0.065	2,516.06	0.07	2,709.60
Football						
Senior High Varsity Head	0.19	7,354.63	0.205	7,935.25	0.22	8,515.88
Senior High Varsity Ass't	0.13	5,032.11	0.145	5,612.74	0.16	6,193.37
Senior High Sophmore Head	0.13	5,032.11	0.145	5,612.74	0.16	6,193.37
Senior High Sophmore Ass't	0.1	3,870.86	0.115	4,451.48	0.13	5,032.11
Senior High Freshman	0.1	3,870.86	0.115	4,451.48	0.13	5,032.11
Junior High Head	0.07	2,709.60	0.085	3,290.23	0.1	3,870.86
Junior High Ass't	0.05	1,935.43	0.06	2,322.51	0.07	2,709.60
Golf						
Varsity	0.12	4,645.03	0.135	5,225.66	0.16	6,193.37
Frosh/Soph	0.07	2,709.60	0.085	3,290.23	0.1	3,870.86
Soccer						
Senior High Varsity	0.16	6,193.37	0.175	6,774.00	0.19	7 254 62
Senior High Frosh/Soph	0.11	4,257.94	0.175	4,838.57	0.14	7,354.63 5,419.20
Junior High	0.045	1,741.89	0.05	1,935.43	0.055	2,128.97
•		,		-,		=,1= 0.5 /
Softball Soniar High Variety	0.16	6 102 27	0.175	C 774 00	0.10	
Senior High Varsity Senior High Frosh/Soph	0.16	6,193.37	0.175	6,774.00	0.19	7,354.63
Junior High	0.11 0.045	4,257.94 1,741.89	0.125 0.05	4,838.57	0.14	5,419.20
Juliot High	0.043	1,741.07	0.03	1,935.43	0.055	2,128.97
Swimming						
Junior High	0.02	774.17	0.025	967.71	0.03	1,161.26
Track						
Senior High Varsity (w Indoor)	0.17	6,580.46	0.185	7,161.08	0.2	7,741,71
Senior High Ass't (w/ Indoor)	0.13	5,032.11	0.145	5,612.74	0.16	6,193.37
Junior High Track Head	0.045	1,741.89	0.05	1,935.43	0.055	2,128.97
Junior High Ass't	0.02	774.17	0.025	967.71	0.03	1,161.26
Volleyball						
Senior High Varsity	0.17	6,580.46	0.185	7,161.08	0.2	7,741.71
atmos saga , assity		2,000.10	102	7,101,00	ع.د	,,/71./1

Senior High Sophmore	0.11	4,257.94	0.125	4,838.57	0.14	5,419.20
Senior High Freshman	0.08	3,096.68	0.095	3,677.31	0.11	4,257.94
Junior High Head	0.07	2,709.60	0.085	3,290.23	0.1	3,870.86
Junior High Asst	0.05	1,935.43	0.06	2,322.51	0.07	2,709.60
Junioi riigii Asst	0.05	1,933.43	0.00	2,322.31	0.07	2,707.00
Wrestling						
	0.17	6 590 46	0.185	7,161.08	0.2	7,741.71
Senior High Varsity	0.17	6,580.46				
Senior High Frosh/Soph	0.11	4,257.94	0.125	4,838.57	0.14	5,419.20
Junior High	0.08	3,096.68	0.095	3,677.31	0.11	4,257.94
Junior High	0.00	3,070.00	0.035	5,011.01	****	-,
Scholastic Bowl						
Senior High	0.07	2,709.60	0.085	3,290.23	0.1	3,870.86
		•		,		
Senior High Ass't	0.06	2,322.51	0.065	2,516.06	0.07	2,709.60
Chess Club						
	0.05	1 005 40	0.06	0.200.61	0.07	2 700 60
Junior High	0.05	1,935.43	0.06	2,322.51	0.07	2,709.60
Drama/Music						
				0.000.14	0.005	2 200 22
Senior High Play Director	0.065	2,516.06	0.075	2,903.14	0.085	3,290.23
Senior High Play Ass't	0.035	1,354.80	0.045	1,741.89	0.055	2,128.97
			0.05	1,935.43	0.06	2,322.51
Junior High Play Director	0.04	1,548.34				
Junior High Play Asst	0.025	967.71	0.025	967.71	0.025	967.71
Swing Choir	0.09	3,483.77	0.095	3,677.31	0.1	3,870.86
Swing Cilon	0.07	5,705.17	0.050	2,011.21		-,0.00
Musical/Senior High						
Director	0.075	2,903.14	0.09	3,483.77	0.105	4,064.40
Technician	0.055	2,128.97	0.07	2,709.60	0.085	3,290.23
Choreographer	0.04	1,548.34	0.05	1,935.43	0.06	2,322.51
					0.055	2,128.97
Orchestral	0.035	1,354.80	0.045	1,741.89		
Choral	0.035	1,354.80	0.045	1,741.89	0.055	2,128.97
Accompanist	0.02	774.17	0.03	1,161.26	0.04	1,548.34
-					0.04	
Costumer	0.02	774.17	0.03	1,161.26		1,548.34
Tickets/Publicity	0.02	774.17	0.02	774.17	0.02	774.1 7
* · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·						
70 1 17 1 77 1						
Musical/Junior High						
Director	0.055	2,128.97	0.06	2,322.51	0.065	2,516.06
Musical Dir.	0.03	1,161.26	0.035	1,354.80	0.04	1,548.34
Choreographer	0.015	580.63	0.02	774.17	0.025	967.71
Technician	0.025	967.71	0.03	1,161.26	0.035	1,354.80
			0.03		0.035	1,354.80
Costumer	0.025	967.71		1,161.26		
Accompanist	0.02	774.17	0.025	967.71	0.03	1,161.26
•						
Instrumental						
Senior High Instrumental Music Director	0.035	1,354.80	0.04	1,548.34	0.045	1,741.89
Senior High Marching Band	0.09	3,483.77	0.095	3,677.31	0.1	3,870.86
				,		
Senior High Spirit Band	0.06	2,322.51	0.07	2,709.60	0.08	3,096.68
Senior High Jazz Band	0.09	3,483.77	0.095	3,677.31	0.1	3,870.86
Senior High Assistant Band Director (Fall)	0.02	774.17	0.025	967.71	0.03	1,161.26
9						
Senior High Assistant Band Director (Winter)	0.02	774.17	0.025	967.71	0.03	1,161.26
Junior High Instrumental Music Director	0.035	1,354.80	0.04	1,548.34	0.045	1,741.89
	0.02	774.17	0.025	967.71	0.03	1,161.26
Junior High Marching Band						
Junior High Spirit Band	0.03	1,161.26	0.035	1,354.80	0.04	1,548.34
Junior High Jazz Band	0.05	1,935.43	0.055	2,128.97	0.06	2,322.51
				1,548.34	0.045	1,741.89
Elementary Band Director	0.035	1,354.80	0.04	1,546.54	0.043	1,771.09
Vocal						
	0.025	1 254 00	0.04	1 540 24	0.045	1 7/1 00
Senior High Vocal Director	0.035	1,354.80	0.04	1,548.34	0.045	1,741.89
Junior High Vocal Director	0.035	1,354.80	0.04	1,548.34	0.045	1,741.89
Elementary Vocal Director	0.025	967.71	0.03	1,161.26	0.035	1,354.80
				,		
Swing Choir	0.09	3,483.77	0.095	3,677.31	0.1	3,870.86
D.Ll. 4						
Publications			0.45-		0.10	
Senior High Yearbook	0.15	5,806.28	0.165	6,386.91	0.18	6,967.54
Senior High Yearbook Ass't	0.04	1,548.34	0.045	1,741.89	0.05	1,935.43
					0.115	4,451.48
Senior High Newspaper	0.095	3,677.31	0.105	4,064.40		
Junior High Yearbook	0.07	2,709.60	0.08	3,096.68	0.09	3,483.77
Junior High Newspaper	0.06	2,322.51	0.07	2,709.60	0.08	3,096.68
Junot High Newspaper	0.00	-,1	····	_,. 0,.00		-,
Outdoor Ed						
Coordinator	0.05	1,935.43	0.055	2,128.97	0.06	2,322.51
Cooldinator	0.00	200000	0.000	-,/		_,

Staff	0.008	309.67	0.01	387.09	0.012	464.50
Sponsors						
All Clubs	0.03	1,161.26				
Senior High Student Council	0.095	3,677.31				
Junior High Student Council	0.125	4,838.57				
National Honor Society (add \$100)	0.045	1,841.89				
Senior Class	0.052	2,012.85				
Junior Class	0.032	1,548.34				
Sophmore Class	0.04	1,548.34				
Freshman Class	0.045	1,741.89				
Literary Festival	0.013	387.09				
Art Festival	0.01	387.09				
Youth & Gov't Advisor	0.02	774.17				
Youth & Gov't Advisor Ass't	0.01	387.09				
Model United Nations	0.02	774.17				
Model United Nations Ass't.						
	0.01	387.09				
Flags - Senior high	0.09	3,483.77				
Geography Club	0.03	1,161.26				
Best Buddies/Circle of Friends	0.03	1,161.26				
Rachel's Challenge Coordinator (add \$100)	0.03	1,261.26				
Rotary Interact (add \$100)	0.03	1,261.26				
Student Leadership Team Sponsor	0.03	1,161.26				
C P						
Coordinators	0.00	2 400 ==				
Senior High Dept. Head (7)	0.09	3,483.77				
Junior High Team Leader	0.09	3,483.77				
AP Coordinator	0.09	3,483.77				
0.4						
Other	0.10	505460				
Farm/Garden	0.19	7,354.63				
PPT/TAT/Diagnosis Screening	0.03	1,161.26				
TAG Teacher	2/5 Plan					
B 42 B 49	Period					
Reading Facilitator	0.05	1,935.43				
Snowball Coord.	0.05	1,935.43				
Snowflake Coord.	0.05	1,935.43				
Snowball/flake staff	0.008	309.67				
Snowflurry Coord.	0.02	774.17				
Snowflurry staff	flat fee	100.00				
ACT prep course (5 pos)	0.03	1,161.26				
ACT prep writing support	0.015	580.63				
Supervision						
Senior High Lunch	0.065	2,516.06				
Junior High Lunch	0.065	2,516.06				
Elementary Lunch-In	0.063	2,438.64				
Elementary Lunch-Out	0.063	2,438.64				
Senior High Bus	0.045	1,741.89				
Junior High Bus	0.045	1,741.89				
Elementary Bus	0.045	1,741.89				
00.5	0.045	1 744 00				
Safety Patrol	0.045	1,741.89				
Playgound	0.045	1,741.89				
Junior High Commons	0.045	1,741.89				
Detention/Homework Ass't - WHS (semester)	0.06	2,322.51				
Detention/Homework Ass't - WJHS (semester)	0.03	1,161.26				
Fees						
Voc Ed Director (Annual)	2,294.08					
Interpreting Aide (Per Period)	17.04					
Certified Interpreting (Per Period)	30.74					
Game Timers/Scorers (Per Game)	31.96					
Mini Bus Driver (Hourly)	19.48					
Pre-school Screening (Per Day)	68.80					
Hearing Impaired Drama (Annual)	1,653.49					
Intramurals (Hourly)	18.57					
Plan Period Teaching (Annual)	7,832.40					
Internal Sub Rate (Per Period)	26.70					
Detention - Junior High (Per Period)	17.04					

2020-2023 WTA Collective Bargaining Agreement

General Supervision (Per Period)	17.35
Summer Curriculum	26.50
Peer Mentoring - upon approval (Hourly)	26.50
Assign to more than two schools (Annual)	500.00
Mentor Program (Level One)	500.00
Mentor Program (Level Two)	300.00

APPENDIX B-2 2021-2022 Stipend Schedule

	Experience		Experience		Experience	
Activity	1-3 Years		4-6 Years		7+ Years	
Athletics						
WJHS Athletic Director + 1 release period	0.075	3,048.30	0.08	3,251.52	0.085	3,454.74
WHS Athletic Director + 0.5 release	0.15	6,096.60	0.17	6,909.48	0.19	7,722.36
Baseball		-,		-,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	0127	7,722.50
Senior Varsity	0.16	6,503.04	0.175	7,112.70	0.19	7,722.36
Senior High/Frosh/Soph	0.11	4,470.84	0.175	5,080.50	0.19	5,690.16
States Inglia i todan Sopii	0.11	1,170.01	0.123	5,000.50	0.14	3,090.10
Basketball						
Senior High Varsity	0.19	7,722.36	0.205	8,332.02	0.22	8,941.68
Senior High Sophomore	0.13	5,283.72	0.145	5,893.38	0.16	6,503.04
Senior High Freshman	0.11	4,470.84	0.125	5,080.50	0.14	5,690.16
Junior High Varsity	0.1	4,064.40	0.12	4,877.28	0.14	5,690.16
Junior High Junior Varsity	0.07	2,845.08	0.085	3,454.74	0.1	4,064.40
Junior High 6th Grade	0.06	2,438.64	0.07	2,845.08	0.08	3,251.52
						1
Cheerleading/Poms						
Pon Poms	0.06	2,438.64	0.07	2,845.08	0.08	3,251.52
Senior High Football	0.06	2,438.64	0.07	2,845.08	0.08	3,251.52
Senior High Basketball	0.08	3,251.52	0.09	3,657.96	0.1	4,064.40
Junior High 7th Grade	0.035	1,422.54	0.045	1,828.98	0.055	2,235.42
Junior High 8th Grade	0.05	2,032.20	0.06	2,438.64	0.07	2,845.08
Cross Country						
Senior High Varsity	0.17	6,909.48	0.185	7,519.14	0.2	8,128.80
Senior High Frosh/Soph	0.08	3,251.52	0.095	3,861.18	0.11	4,470.84
Junior High	0.06	2,438.64	0.065	2,641.86	0.07	2,845.08
Football						
Senior High Varsity Head	0.19	7,722.36	0.205	8,332.02	0.22	8,941.68
Senior High Varsity Ass't	0.13	5,283.72	0.145	5,893.38	0.16	6,503.04
Senior High Sophmore Head	0.13	5,283.72	0.145	5,893.38	0.16	6,503.04
Senior High Sophmore Ass't	0.1	4,064.40	0.115	4,674.06	0.13	5,283.72
Senior High Freshman	0.1	4,064.40	0.115	4,674.06	0.13	5,283.72
Junior High Head	0.07	2,845.08	0.085	3,454.74	0.1	4,064.40
Junior High Ass't	0.05	2,032.20	0.06	2,438.64	0.07	2,845.08
						•
Golf						
Varsity	0.12	4,877.28	0.135	5,486.94	0.16	6,503.04
Frosh/Soph	0.07	2,845.08	0.085	3,454.74	0.1	4,064.40
		•		,		.,

Soccer						
Senior High Varsity	0.16	6,503.04	0.175	7,112.70	0.19	7,722.36
Senior High Frosh/Soph	0.11	4,470.84	0.125	5,080.50	0.14	5,690.16
Junior High	0.045	1,828.98	0.05	2,032.20	0.055	2,235.42
Julio Ingli	0.010	1,020.50	0.00	_,		,
G. 60 U						
Softball	0.16	(502 04	0.176	7,112.70	0.19	7,722.36
Senior High Varsity	0.16	6,503.04 4,470.84	0.175 0.125	5,080.50	0.14	5,690.16
Senior High Frosh/Soph Junior High	0.11 0.045	1,828.98	0.123	2,032.20	0.055	2,235.42
Junior Aign	0.043	1,020.50	0.05	2,032.20	0.055	2,233.42
Swimming	0.02	012.00	0.025	1,016.10	0.03	1,219.32
Junior High	0.02	812.88	0.025	1,010.10	0.03	1,219.32
Track						
Senior High Varsity (w Indoor)	0.17	6,909.48	0.185	7,519.14	0.2	8,128.80
Senior High Ass't (w/ Indoor)	0.13	5,283.72	0.145	5,893.38	0.16	6,503.04
Junior High Track Head	0.045	1,828.98	0.05	2,032.20	0.055	2,235.42
Junior High Ass't	0.02	812.88	0.025	1,016.10	0.03	1,219.32
Volleyball						
Senior High Varsity	0.17	6,909.48	0.185	7,519.14	0.2	8,128.80
Senior High Sophmore	0.11	4,470.84	0.125	5,080.50	0.14	5,690.16
Senior High Freshman	0.08	3,251.52	0.095	3,861.18	0.11	4,470.84
Junior High Head	0.07	2,845.08	0.085	3,454.74	0.1	4,064.40
Junior High Asst	0.05	2,032.20	0.06	2,438.64	0.07	2,845.08
Wrestling						
Senior High Varsity	0.17	6,909.48	0.185	7,519.14	0.2	8,128.80
Senior High Frosh/Soph	0.11	4,470.84	0.125	5,080.50	0.14	5,690.16
Junior High	0.08	3,251.52	0.095	3,861.18	0.11	4,470.84
Scholastic Bowl						,
Senior High	0.07	2,845.08	0.085	3,454.74	0.1	4,064.40
Senior High Ass't	0.06	2,438.64	0.065	2,641.86	0.07	2,845.08
Chess Club						
Junior High	0.05	2,032.20	0.06	2,438.64	0.07	2,845.08
June Ingi	0.05	2,002.20	0.00	-,		_,,
Drama/Music						
Senior High Play Director	0.065	2,641.86	0.075	3,048.30	0.085	3,454.74
Senior High Play Ass't	0.035	1,422.54	0.045	1,828.98	0.055	2,235.42
Junior High Play Director	0.04	1,625.76	0.05	2,032.20	0.06	2,438.64
Junior High Play Asst	0.025	1,016.10	0.025	1,016.10	0.025	1,016.10
Swing Choir	0.09	3,657.96	0.095	3,861.18	0.1	4,064.40

Musical/Senior High

Director	0.075	3,048.30	0.09	3,657.96	0.105	4,267.62
Technician	0.055	2,235.42	0.07	2,845.08	0.085	3,454.74
Choreographer	0.04	1,625.76	0.05	2,032.20	0.06	2,438.64
Orchestral	0.035	1,422.54	0.045	1,828.98	0.055	2,235.42
Choral	0.035	1,422.54	0.045	1,828.98	0.055	2,235.42
Accompanist	0.02	812.88	0.03	1,219.32	0.04	1,625.76
Costumer	0.02	812.88	0.03	1,219.32	0.04	1,625.76
Tickets/Publicity	0.02	812.88	0.02	812.88	0.02	812.88
Musical/Junior High						
Director	0.055	2,235.42	0.06	2,438.64	0.065	2,641.86
Musical Dir.	0.03	1,219.32	0.035	1,422.54	0.04	1,625.76
Choreographer	0.015	609.66	0.02	812.88	0.025	1,016.10
Technician	0.025	1,016.10	0.03	1,219.32	0.035	1,422.54
Costumer	0.025	1,016.10	0.03	1,219.32	0.035	1,422.54
Accompanist	0.02	812.88	0.025	1,016.10	0.03	1,219.32
Instrumental						
Senior High Instrumental Music Director	0.035	1,422.54	0.04	1,625.76	0.045	1,828.98
Senior High Marching Band	0.09	3,657.96	0.095	3,861.18	0.1	4,064.40
Senior High Spirit Band	0.06	2,438.64	0.07	2,845.08	0.08	3,251.52
Senior High Jazz Band	0.09	3,657.96	0.095	3,861.18	0.1	4,064.40
Senior High Assistant Band Director (Fall)	0.02	812.88	0.025	1,016.10	0.03	1,219.32
Senior High Assistant Band Director (Winter)	0.02	812.88	0.025	1,016.10	0.03	1,219.32
Junior High Instrumental Music Director	0.035	1,422.54	0.04	1,625.76	0.045	1,828.98
Junior High Marching Band	0.02	812.88	0.025	1,016.10	0.03	1,219.32
Junior High Spirit Band	0.03	1,219.32	0.035	1,422.54	0.04	1,625.76
Junior High Jazz Band	0.05	2,032.20	0.055	2,235.42	0.06	2,438.64
Elementary Band Director	0.035	1,422.54	0.04	1,625.76	0.045	1,828.98
				·		•
Vocal						
Senior High Vocal Director	0.035	1,422.54	0.04	1,625.76	0.045	1,828.98
Junior High Vocal Director	0.035	1,422.54	0.04	1,625.76	0.045	1,828.98
Elementary Vocal Director	0.025	1,016.10	0.03	1,219.32	0.035	1,422.54
Swing Choir	0.09	3,657.96	0.095	3,861.18	0.1	4,064.40
Publications						
Senior High Yearbook	0.15	6,096.60	0.165	6,706.26	0.18	7,315.92
Senior High Yearbook Ass't	0.04	1,625.76	0.045	1,828.98	0.05	2,032.20
Senior High Newspaper	0.095	3,861.18	0.105	4,267.62	0.115	4,674.06
Junior High Yearbook	0.07	2,845.08	0.08	3,251.52	0.09	3,657.96
Junior High Newspaper	0.06	2,438.64	0.07	2,845.08	0.08	3,251.52
Outdoor Ed						
Coordinator	0.05	2,032.20	0.055	2,235.42	0.06	2,438.64
Staff	0.008	325.15	0.01	406.44	0.012	487.73

Sponsors

All Clubs	0.03	1,219.32
Senior High Student Council	0.095	3,861.18
Junior High Student Council	0.125	5,080.50
National Honor Society (add \$100)	0.045	1,928.98
Senior Class	0.052	2,113.49
Junior Class	0.04	1,625.76
Sophmore Class	0.04	1,625.76
Freshman Class	0.045	1,828.98
Literary Festival	0.01	406.44
Art Festival	0.01	406.44
Youth & Gov't Advisor	0.02	812.88
Youth & Gov't Advisor Ass't	0.01	406.44
Model United Nations	0.02	812.88
Model United Nations Ass't.	0.01	406.44
Flags - Senior high	0.09	3,657.96
Geography Club	0.03	1,219.32
Best Buddies/Circle of Friends	0.03	1,219.32
Rachel's Challenge Coordinator (add \$100)	0.03	1,319.32
Rotary Interact (add \$100)	0.03	1,319.32
Student Leadership Team Sponsor	0.03	1,219.32
Coordinators		
Senior High Dept. Head (7)	0.09	3,657.96
Junior High Team Leader	0.09	3,657.96
AP Coordinator	0.09	3,657.96
Other		
Farm/Garden	0.19	7,722.36
PPT/TAT/Diagnosis Screening	0.03	1,219.32
TAG Teacher	2/5 Plan Period	
Reading Facilitator	0.05	2,032.20
Snowball Coord.	0.05	2,032.20
Snowflake Coord.	0.05	2,032.20
Snowball/flake staff	0.008	325.15
Snowflurry Coord.	0.02	812.88
Snowflurry staff	flat fee	100.00
ACT prep course (5 pos)	0.03	1,219.32
ACT prep writing support	0.015	609.66

Supervision

Senior High Lunch	0.065	2,641.86
Junior High Lunch	0.065	2,641.86
Elementary Lunch-In	0.063	2,560.57
Elementary Lunch-Out	0.063	2,560.57
Senior High Bus	0.045	1,828.98
Junior High Bus	0.045	1,828.98
Elementary Bus	0.045	1,828.98
Safety Patrol	0.045	1,828.98
Playgound	0.045	1,828.98
Junior High Commons	0.045	1,828.98
Detention/Homework Ass't - WHS (semester)	0.06	2,438.64
Detention/Homework Ass't - WJHS (semester)	0.03	1,219.32
Fees		
Fees Voc Ed Director (Annual)	2,294.08	
	2,294.08 17.04	
Voc Ed Director (Annual)	*	
Voc Ed Director (Annual) Interpreting Aide (Per Period)	17.04	
Voc Ed Director (Annual) Interpreting Aide (Per Period) Certified Interpreting (Per Period)	17.04 30.74	
Voc Ed Director (Annual) Interpreting Aide (Per Period) Certified Interpreting (Per Period) Game Timers/Scorers (Per Game)	17.04 30.74 31.96	
Voc Ed Director (Annual) Interpreting Aide (Per Period) Certified Interpreting (Per Period) Game Timers/Scorers (Per Game) Mini Bus Driver (Hourly)	17.04 30.74 31.96 19.48	
Voc Ed Director (Annual) Interpreting Aide (Per Period) Certified Interpreting (Per Period) Game Timers/Scorers (Per Game) Mini Bus Driver (Hourly) Pre-school Screening (Per Day)	17.04 30.74 31.96 19.48 68.80	
Voc Ed Director (Annual) Interpreting Aide (Per Period) Certified Interpreting (Per Period) Game Timers/Scorers (Per Game) Mini Bus Driver (Hourly) Pre-school Screening (Per Day) Hearing Impaired Drama (Annual)	17.04 30.74 31.96 19.48 68.80 1,653.49	
Voc Ed Director (Annual) Interpreting Aide (Per Period) Certified Interpreting (Per Period) Game Timers/Scorers (Per Game) Mini Bus Driver (Hourly) Pre-school Screening (Per Day) Hearing Impaired Drama (Annual) Intramurals (Hourly)	17.04 30.74 31.96 19.48 68.80 1,653.49 18.57	
Voc Ed Director (Annual) Interpreting Aide (Per Period) Certified Interpreting (Per Period) Game Timers/Scorers (Per Game) Mini Bus Driver (Hourly) Pre-school Screening (Per Day) Hearing Impaired Drama (Annual) Intramurals (Hourly) Plan Period Teaching (Annual)	17.04 30.74 31.96 19.48 68.80 1,653.49 18.57 7,832.40	
Voc Ed Director (Annual) Interpreting Aide (Per Period) Certified Interpreting (Per Period) Game Timers/Scorers (Per Game) Mini Bus Driver (Hourly) Pre-school Screening (Per Day) Hearing Impaired Drama (Annual) Intramurals (Hourly) Plan Period Teaching (Annual) Internal Sub Rate (Per Period)	17.04 30.74 31.96 19.48 68.80 1,653.49 18.57 7,832.40 26.70	
Voc Ed Director (Annual) Interpreting Aide (Per Period) Certified Interpreting (Per Period) Game Timers/Scorers (Per Game) Mini Bus Driver (Hourly) Pre-school Screening (Per Day) Hearing Impaired Drama (Annual) Intramurals (Hourly) Plan Period Teaching (Annual) Internal Sub Rate (Per Period) Detention - Junior High (Per Period)	17.04 30.74 31.96 19.48 68.80 1,653.49 18.57 7,832.40 26.70 17.04	
Voc Ed Director (Annual) Interpreting Aide (Per Period) Certified Interpreting (Per Period) Game Timers/Scorers (Per Game) Mini Bus Driver (Hourly) Pre-school Screening (Per Day) Hearing Impaired Drama (Annual) Intramurals (Hourly) Plan Period Teaching (Annual) Internal Sub Rate (Per Period) Detention - Junior High (Per Period)	17.04 30.74 31.96 19.48 68.80 1,653.49 18.57 7,832.40 26.70 17.04 17.35	
Voc Ed Director (Annual) Interpreting Aide (Per Period) Certified Interpreting (Per Period) Game Timers/Scorers (Per Game) Mini Bus Driver (Hourly) Pre-school Screening (Per Day) Hearing Impaired Drama (Annual) Intramurals (Hourly) Plan Period Teaching (Annual) Internal Sub Rate (Per Period) Detention - Junior High (Per Period) Summer Curriculum	17.04 30.74 31.96 19.48 68.80 1,653.49 18.57 7,832.40 26.70 17.04 17.35 26.50	
Voc Ed Director (Annual) Interpreting Aide (Per Period) Certified Interpreting (Per Period) Game Timers/Scorers (Per Game) Mini Bus Driver (Hourly) Pre-school Screening (Per Day) Hearing Impaired Drama (Annual) Intranurals (Hourly) Plan Period Teaching (Annual) Internal Sub Rate (Per Period) Detention - Junior High (Per Period) General Supervision (Per Period) Summer Curriculum Peer Mentoring - upon approval (Hourly)	17.04 30.74 31.96 19.48 68.80 1,653.49 18.57 7,832.40 26.70 17.04 17.35 26.50 26.50	
Voc Ed Director (Annual) Interpreting Aide (Per Period) Certified Interpreting (Per Period) Game Timers/Scorers (Per Game) Mini Bus Driver (Hourly) Pre-school Screening (Per Day) Hearing Impaired Drama (Annual) Intramurals (Hourly) Plan Period Teaching (Annual) Internal Sub Rate (Per Period) Detention - Junior High (Per Period) General Supervision (Per Period) Summer Curriculum Peer Mentoring - upon approval (Hourly) Assign to more than two schools (Annual)	17.04 30.74 31.96 19.48 68.80 1,653.49 18.57 7,832.40 26.70 17.04 17.35 26.50 26.50 500.00	

APPENDIX B-3 2022-2023 Stipend Schedule

Base Salary	\$42,676
-------------	----------

	Experience		Experience		Experience	
Activity	1-3 Years		4-6 Years		7+ Years	
Athletics						
WJHS Athletic Director + 1 release period	0.075	3,200.71	0.08	3,414.10	0.085	3,627.48
WHS Athletic Director + 0.5 release	0.15	6,401.43	0.17	7,254.95	0.19	8,108.48
Baseball						
Senior Varsity	0.16	6,828.19	0.175	7,468.33	0.19	8,108.48
Senior High/Frosh/Soph	0.11	4,694.38	0.125	5,334.52	0.14	5,974.67
Basketball						
Senior High Varsity	0.19	8,108.48	0.205	8,748.62	0.22	9,388.76
Senior High Sophomore	0.13	5,547.90	0.145	6,188.05	0.16	6,828.19
Senior High Freshman	0.11	4,694.38	0.125	5,334.52	0.14	5,974.67
Junior High Varsity	0.1	4,267.62	0.12	5,121.14	0.14	5,974.67
Junior High Junior Varsity	0.07	2,987.33	0.085	3,627.48	0.1	4,267.62
Junior High 6th Grade	0.06	2,560.57	0.07	2,987.33	0.08	3,414.10
Cheerleading/Poms	0.06	2.560.57	0.07	2 007 22	0.08	3,414.10
Pon Poms	0.06	2,560.57	0.07 0.07	2,987.33 2,987.33	0.08	3,414.10
Senior High Football	0.06 0.08	2,560.57 3,414.10	0.07	3,840.86	0.08	4,267.62
Senior High Basketball Junior High 7th Grade	0.08	1,493.67	0.045	1,920.43	0.055	2,347.19
Junior High 8th Grade	0.05	2,133.81	0.06	2,560.57	0.07	2,987.33
Junior Tingin our Grade	0.00	_,		_,.		,
Cross Country						
Senior High Varsity	0.17	7,254.95	0.185	7,895.10	0.2	8,535.24
Senior High Frosh/Soph	0.08	3,414.10	0.095	4,054.24	0.11	4,694.38
Junior High	0.06	2,560.57	0.065	2,773.95	0.07	2,987.33
Football						
Senior High Varsity Head	0.19	8,108.48	0.205	8,748.62	0.22	9,388.76
Senior High Varsity Ass't	0.13	5,547.90	0.145	6,188.05	0.16	6,828.19
Senior High Sophmore Head	0.13	5,547.90	0.145	6,188.05	0.16	6,828.19
Senior High Sophmore Ass't	0.1	4,267.62	0.115	4,907.76	0.13	5,547.90
Senior High Freshman	0.1	4,267.62	0.115	4,907.76	0.13	5,547.90
Junior High Head	0.07	2,987.33	0.085	3,627.48	0.1	4,267.62
Junior High Ass't	0.05	2,133.81	0.06	2,560.57	0.07	2,987.33
Golf						
Varsity	0.12	5,121.14	0.135	5,761.29	0.16	6,828.19
Valsity Frosh/Soph	0.12	2,987.33	0.133	3,627.48	0.10	4,267.62
1/1081//30/01	5.07	در ۱ ۱ تا دوس	0.000	2,027.10	V	.,_07102

Soccer						
Senior High Varsity	0.16	6,828.19	0.175	7,468.33	0.19	8,108.48
Senior High Frosh/Soph	0.11	4,694.38	0.125	5,334.52	0.14	5,974.67
Junior High	0.045	1,920.43	0.05	2,133.81	0.055	2,347.19
		3		_,		=,5 17.15
Softball						
Senior High Varsity	0.16	6,828.19	0.175	7,468.33	0.19	8,108.48
Senior High Frosh/Soph	0.11	4,694.38	0.125	5,334.52	0.14	5,974.67
Junior High	0.045	1,920.43	0.05	2,133.81	0.055	2,347.19
3		-,,		_,	0,000	2,5 17.15
Curimmina						
Swimming Junior High	0.02	853.52	0.025	1,066.90	0.03	1 200 20
Julioi Iligii	0.02	655.52	0.023	1,000.90	0.05	1,280.29
Track						
Senior High Varsity (w Indoor)	0.17	7,254.95	0.185	7,895.10	0.2	8,535.24
Senior High Ass't (w/ Indoor)	0.13	5,547.90	0.145	6,188.05	0.16	6,828.19
Junior High Track Head	0.045	1,920.43	0.05	2,133.81	0.055	2,347.19
Junior High Ass't	0.02	853.52	0.025	1,066.90	0.03	1,280.29
_				-,		_,,, -, -, -, -, -, -, -, -, -, -, -, -,
Volleyball						
Senior High Varsity	0.17	7,254.95	0.185	7,895.10	0.2	8,535.24
Senior High Sophmore	0.11	4,694.38	0.125	5,334.52	0.14	5,974.67
Senior High Freshman	0.08	3,414.10	0.095	4,054.24	0.11	4,694.38
Junior High Head	0.07	2,987.33	0.085	3,627.48	0.1	4,267.62
Junior High Asst	0.05	2,133.81	0.06	2,560.57	0.07	2,987.33
Wrestling						
Senior High Varsity	0.17	7,254.95	0.185	7,895.10	0.2	8,535.24
Senior High Frosh/Soph	0.11	4,694.38	0.125	5,334.52	0.14	5,974.67
Junior High	0.08	3,414.10	0.095	4,054.24	0.11	4,694.38
						,
Scholastic Bowl						
Senior High	0.07	2,987.33	0.085	3,627.48	0.1	4,267.62
Senior High Ass't	0.06	2,560.57	0.065	2,773.95	0.07	2,987.33
-		ŕ		,		_,, . , , , , ,
Chess Club						
Junior High	0.05	2,133.81	0.06	2,560.57	0.07	2,987.33
Drama/Music						
Senior High Play Director	0.065	2,773.95	0.075	3,200.71	0.085	3,627.48
Senior High Play Ass't	0.035	1,493.67	0.045	1,920.43	0.055	2,347.19
Junior High Play Director	0.04	1,707.05	0.05	2,133.81	0.06	2,560.57
Junior High Play Asst	0.025	1,066.90	0.025	1,066.90	0.025	1,066.90
Swing Choir	0.09	3,840.86	0.095	4,054.24	0.1	4,267.62

Musical/Senior High

Director	0.075	3,200.71	0.09	3,840.86	0.105	4,481.00
Technician	0.055	2,347.19	0.07	2,987.33	0.085	3,627.48
Choreographer	0.04	1,707.05	0.05	2,133.81	0.06	2,560.57
Orchestral	0.035	1,493.67	0.045	1,920.43	0.055	2,347.19
Choral	0.035	1,493.67	0.045	1,920.43	0.055	2,347.19
Accompanist	0.02	853.52	0.03	1,280.29	0.04	1,707.05
Costumer	0.02	853.52	0.03	1,280.29	0.04	1,707.05
Tickets/Publicity	0.02	853.52	0.02	853.52	0.02	853.52
25 1 275 1 371 1						
Musical/Junior High	0.055	2 2 4 7 1 0	0.06	2 560 57	0.065	2 772 05
Director	0.055	2,347.19	0.06	2,560.57	0.003	2,773.95
Musical Dir.	0.03	1,280.29	0.035	1,493.67	0.04	1,707.05
Choreographer	0.015	640.14	0.02	853.52	0.025	1,066.90
Technician	0.025	1,066.90	0.03	1,280.29		1,493.67
Costumer	0.025	1,066.90	0.03	1,280.29	0.035 0.03	1,493.67
Accompanist	0.02	853.52	0.025	1,066.90	0.03	1,280.29
Instrumental						
Senior High Instrumental Music Director	0.035	1,493.67	0.04	1,707.05	0.045	1,920.43
Senior High Marching Band	0.09	3,840.86	0.095	4,054.24	0.1	4,267.62
Senior High Spirit Band	0.06	2,560.57	0.07	2,987.33	0.08	3,414.10
Senior High Jazz Band	0.09	3,840.86	0.095	4,054.24	0.1	4,267.62
Senior High Assistant Band Director (Fall)	0.02	853.52	0.025	1,066.90	0.03	1,280.29
Senior High Assistant Band Director (Winter)	0.02	853.52	0.025	1,066.90	0.03	1,280.29
Junior High Instrumental Music Director	0.035	1,493.67	0.04	1,707.05	0.045	1,920.43
Junior High Marching Band	0.02	853.52	0.025	1,066.90	0.03	1,280.29
Junior High Spirit Band	0.03	1,280.29	0.035	1,493.67	0.04	1,707.05
Junior High Jazz Band	0.05	2,133.81	0.055	2,347.19	0.06	2,560.57
Elementary Band Director	0.035	1,493.67	0.04	1,707.05	0.045	1,920.43
Vocal						
Senior High Vocal Director	0.035	1,493.67	0.04	1,707.05	0.045	1,920.43
Junior High Vocal Director	0.035	1,493.67	0.04	1,707.05	0.045	1,920.43
Elementary Vocal Director	0.025	1,066.90	0.03	1,280.29	0.035	1,493.67
Swing Choir	0.09	3,840.86	0.095	4,054.24	0.1	4,267.62
2		,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,		,		
Publications						
Senior High Yearbook	0.15	6,401.43	0.165	7,041.57	0.18	7,681.71
Senior High Yearbook Ass't	0.04	1,707.05	0.045	1,920.43	0.05	2,133.81
Senior High Newspaper	0.095	4,054.24	0.105	4,481.00	0.115	4,907.76
Junior High Yearbook	0.07	2,987.33	0.08	3,414.10	0.09	3,840.86
Junior High Newspaper	0.06	2,560.57	0.07	2,987.33	0.08	3,414.10
Outdoor Ed						
Coordinator	0.05	2,133.81	0.055	2,347.19	0.06	2,560.57
Staff	0.008	341.41	0.01	426.76	0.012	512.11
V						

Sponsors

All Clubs	0.03	
Senior High Student Council	0.095	4,054.24
Junior High Student Council	0.125	5,334.52
National Honor Society (add \$100)	0.045	2,020.43
Senior Class	0.052	2,219.16
Junior Class	0.04	1,707.05
Sophmore Class	0.04	1,707.05
Freshman Class	0.045	1,920.43
Literary Festival	0.01	426.76
Art Festival	0.01	426.76
Youth & Gov't Advisor	0.02	853.52
Youth & Gov't Advisor Ass't	0.01	426.76
Model United Nations	0.02	853.52
Model United Nations Ass't.	0.01	426.76
Flags - Senior high	0.09	3,840.86
Geography Club	0.03	1,280.29
Best Buddies/Circle of Friends	0.03	1,280.29
Rachel's Challenge Coordinator (add \$100)	0.03	1,380.29
Rotary Interact (add \$100)	0.03	1,380.29
Student Leadership Team Sponsor	0.03	1,280.29
Coordinators		
Senior High Dept. Head (7)	0.09	3,840.86
Junior High Team Leader	0.09	3,840.86
AP Coordinator	0.09	3,840.86
Other	0.10	0.100.40
Farm/Garden PPT/TAT/Diagnosis Screening	0.19	8,108.48
	0.03	1,280.29
TAG Teacher	2/5 Plan Period	A 122 01
Reading Facilitator	0.05	2,133.81
Snowball Coord.	0.05	2,133.81
Snowflake Coord. Snowball/flake staff	0.05	2,133.81
Snowflurry Coord.	0.008	341.41
_		853.52
Snowflurry staff	flat fee	100.00
ACT prep course (5 pos) ACT prep writing support	0.03 0.015	1,280.29 640.14
wer breh arming subbout	0.019	040.14
Supervision		
Senior High Lunch	0.065	2,773.95
Server and administration		_,

Junior High Lunch	0.065	2,773.95
Elementary Lunch-In	0.063	2,688.60
Elementary Lunch-Out	0.063	2,688.60
Senior High Bus	0.045	1,920.43
Junior High Bus	0.045	1,920.43
Elementary Bus	0.045	1,920.43
Diviniting 2 as		-,
Safety Patrol	0.045	1,920.43
Playgound	0.045	1,920.43
• •		,
Junior High Commons	0.045	1,920.43
Detention/Homework Ass't - WHS (semester)	0.06	2,560.57
Detention/Homework Ass't - WJHS (semester)	0.03	1,280.29
Fees		
Voc Ed Director (Annual)	2,294.08	
Interpreting Aide (Per Period)	17.04	
Certified Interpreting (Per Period)	30.74	
Game Timers/Scorers (Per Game)	31.96	
Mini Bus Driver (Hourly)	19.48	
Pre-school Screening (Per Day)	68.80	
Hearing Impaired Drama (Annual)	1,653.49	
Intramurals (Hourly)	18.57	
Plan Period Teaching (Annual)	7,832.40	
Internal Sub Rate (Per Period)	26.70	
Detention - Junior High (Per Period)	17.04	
General Supervision (Per Period)	17.35	
Summer Curriculum	26.50	
Summer Curriculum Peer Mentoring - upon approval (Hourly)	26.50 26.50	
Peer Mentoring - upon approval (Hourly)	26.50	
Peer Mentoring - upon approval (Hourly) Assign to more than two schools (Annual)	26.50 500.00	

APPENDIX C POST-RETIREMENT INCENTIVE AGREEMENT

Unit School I establish the incentive according the 2020-20 confirms the runion and the	obstrict 201 (the "Employer"), and (the "Employee"), to rights of the Employee to Retiree Insurance benefits and/or a lump sum retirement rding to the terms of Sections 10.3 and 10.4 (collectively, "post-retirement incentives") Collective Bargaining Agreement. It is expressly understood that this Agreement ights given to the Employee under the Collective Bargaining Agreement between the Employer. This Agreement does not alter in any way the Employee's right to any other ded by the Employer via the Collective Bargaining Agreement or other agreements.
1.	The Employee shall receive post-retirement incentives under Sections 10.3 and/or 10.4 of the Collective Bargaining Agreement if he or she is eligible for these benefits under Section 10.0.
2.	In the event of the Employee's death before retirement or before this agreement has been fully performed, the Unused Sick Leave lump sum retirement incentive under Section 10.4 will pass to a person specifically designated to receive such benefits in a signed, written document received by the Employer. If no such document exists, then the Unused Sick Leave lump sum retirement incentive under Section 10.4 will pass on to those who are designated in the Employee's last will and testament. If the Employee does not designate an individual in either a document or a last will and testament, the Unused Sick Leave lump sum retirement incentive under Section 10.4 will pass on to the Employee's estate.
3.	In the event the Employee dies before this agreement is fully performed, the person below shall receive the remainder of the Unused Sick Leave lump sum retirement incentive under Section 10.4 that is due to the Employee:
	Beneficiary:
	Address:
	Phone Number:
4.	The Employee's post-retirement incentives will include the following (check all that apply):
	• TRS Retiree Insurance benefits according to Section 10.3(A)
	• COBRA Insurance benefits according to Section 10.3(B)
	 Unused Sick Leave lump sum retirement incentive according to Section 10.4, due and payable after the last day of work and final paycheck for regular earnings

- 5. All payments made to Employee will be made following all applicable Federal and Illinois statutes, laws, and regulations.
- 6. Neither the Employee nor any designated beneficiary under this agreement can borrow against or assign the right to receive payments under this agreement.
- 7. The laws of Illinois will apply to any disputes that arise under this agreement.

Community Unit School District 201	[Employee's Name]
Date	Date